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VISION, MISSION AND KEY VALUES STATEMENT 
 

VISION 

A global institution of excellence, surpassing community needs 

 

MISSION 

To provide high quality Education and Training that is affordable, relevant, learner-centred and that contributes to the total development of individuals through: 

 Optimal utilisation of resources 

 Creative and innovative modes of delivery 

 Appropriately skilled staff and 

 Community upliftment 

 

KEY VALUES 

ORIBT College believes in 

 

Transformation 

Policies, procedures, activities and programmes are responsive to community needs and redress imbalances of the past, thereby ensuring increased inclusivity and 

accessibility 

 

Accountability 

Decision-making processes are transparent with proper financial management systems and procedures with the focus on efficiency and effectiveness, including being fair, 

ethical and trustworthy in all that we do 

 

Respect 

We respect the values of human dignity, equality, human rights and freedom, non-racism and non-sexism 

 

Teamwork 

Co-operating with one another, the community, business stakeholders and partners in education in an open and supportive way to achieve shared goals  
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1. INTRODUCTION 

This Annual Performance Report for 2020 aims to present and showcase the performance and achievements of ORBIT TVET College during the 2020 academic 

year.  The report serves to provide an honest overview of the extent to which strategic targets have been met in terms of academic, enrolment, management and 
administrative performance.  
 

2. ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS 

AA & CC    Annual Awards & Certification Ceremony 

AB    Academic Board 

AGSA    Auditor General of South Africa 

ASB    Accounting Standards Board 

ARC    Audit and Risk Committee 

ASO    Academic Support Officer 

BDI    Business Development and Innovation 

BMS    Business Management System 

BS    Business Studies 

CATHSSETA    Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sports Sector Education and TRAINING Authority  

CET Act No.16 of 2016  CET Act 

CETA    Construction Education and Training Authority 

CoC    Certificate of Competence 

CoECOM    Conditions of Employment Committee 

CoS    Centres of Specialisation 

CoSACSA    College Sports, Arts & Culture Championships  

COVID-19    Corona Virus Disease/ 2019 novel coronavirus 

DHET    Department of Higher Education and Training 

ECD    Early Childhood Development 

ES    Engineering Studies 

ETDP SETA    Education, Training and Development Practices Sector and Training Authority 
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ETU    Education and Training Unit 

EW SETA    Energy and Water Sector Education and Training Authority 

FASSET    Finance and Accounting Services Sector Education and Training Authority 

FINCOM    Finance Committee 

FTE    Full Time Equivalent 

GRAP    Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

HEI    Higher Education Institution 

HoD    Head of Department 

ICASS    Integrated Continuous Assessment 

ICDL    International Computer Driver’s Licence 

IPSAS    International Public Sector Accounting Services 

ISAT    Integrated Summative Assessment Tasks 

ISFAP    Ikusasa Student Financial Aid Programme 

ISO9001:2008    International Quality Standard of the International Organisation for Standardisation 

LAN    Local Area Network 

MANCO    Management Committee 

MerSETA    Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training Authority 

MICT    Media, Information and Communication Technologies Sector Education and Training Authority 

MIS    Management Information System 

MQA    Mining Qualifications Authority 

NAFBI    National African Federation for the Building Industry 

NAMB    National Artisan Moderation Body 

NATED    National Department of Education Report 190/191 Programmes 

NC    National Certificate  

NC(V)    National Certificate (Vocational) 

NEETs    Not in Employment, Education, nor in Training 

NQF    National Qualifications Framework 

NSC    National Senior Certificate 
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NSDS     National Skills Development Strategy 

NSFAS    National Student Financial Aid Scheme 

NTC    National Technical Certificate 

NYDA    National Youth Development Agency 

PAL    Peer Academic Leaders 

PLP    Pre-learning Programme 

PPN    Post Provisioning Norms 

PRC    Planning and Resource Committee 

PRO    Public Relations Officer 

QMS    Quality Management System 

RMC    Risk Management Committee 

SABEN    South African Broadcast Education Networks 

SABS    South African Bureau of Standards 

SACPO    South African College Principals’ Organisation  

SAICA    South African Institute of Chartered Accountants 

SARS    South African Revenue Services 

SARS- COV-2   Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus 2 

SETA    Sector Education and Training Authority 

SNE    Students with Special Needs for Education 

SoP    Schedule of Particulars 

SRC    Student Representative Council 

SSO    Student Support Officer 

THETA    Tourism, Hospitality and Sport Education and Training Authority 

TVET    Technical and Vocational Education and Training 

SSS    Student Support Services 

Umalusi   Quality Assurance Body for the General and Further Education and Training Sectors in South Africa 

VAT   Value Added Tax 

W & R SETA    Wholesale and Retail Sector Education and Training Authority 
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WAN    Wide Area Network 

WBE    Workplace-based Education 

WIL    Work Integrated Learning 

 

References in this Annual Report are to the FET Colleges Act No.16 of 2006 as amended by Act No.3 of 2012 and the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act (No 16 

of 2006) 
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PART A: GENERAL OVERVIEW
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3. MESSAGE FROM THE COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON 
 

 

2020 was a year, primarily defined by the COVID-19 pandemic.  As SARS- COV-2 (Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus 2) set on 2020, all segments 

of society in the world were affected. Some areas suffered more than others, but none were spared. Governments of countries took harsh measures to combat 

the disease, including lockdowns that caused unprecedented disruptions to work-life, the economy as well as academia. As the economic, social and public health 

environments rapidly changed, the evolution of corporate governance also reached a punctuated equilibrium, developing in leaps. This is because the political 

sphere started to exercise a greater influence on socio-economic life, to which corporate governance had to adjust. A global pandemic requires strong governance 

and effective coo᷈rdination. The pandemic exposed the benefits of a stronger, more flexible and more responsive civil service which could incorporate risk 

management and that has access to contingencies in an emergency. It has also stressed the need for sound procurement policies, systems and processes.  

 

ORBIT TVET College was faced with difficult academic as well as a host of social, digital and financial challenges that could linger for months or even years. We 

saw many incident response teams led by the College principal and deputy principals, with sub-teams focused on operations and academic advisory groups 

working alongside each other. There was a clear flow of information and strong communication across the institution. At present we are trying to build on these 

mechanisms to respond to the secondary effects of the pandemic. Without getting in the way of management, Council needed to take a more involved role than 

in normal circumstances – it is no good holding management to account on a retrospective basis after the organisation has reached a crisis level. The Continuing 

Education and Training Act 16 of 2006 defines several basic legal duties for members of Council, the most prominent amongst these being Section 10(9): that 

Council members should promote the best interests of the college. These are not empty demands as the Council may well be compelled to show evidence of 

their consideration at a later date, both in corporate reporting and in instances where college management were required to legally justify specific decisions by 

regulators. Some of the key issues which the Council oversaw and monitored, included the following: 

 

Health and safety. It goes without saying that during a health crisis like the COVID-19 pandemic, Council should ensure that it sets the right tone at the top. 

Policies were put in place to protect students’ and employees’ wellbeing in an attempt to act responsibly to slow the spread of the virus. Council has a duty to 

both the college and to society as a whole to closely monitor the adherence to guidance and requirements of government and health authorities, and to ensure 

https://www.worldbank.org/en/topic/procurement-for-development
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that these are fully complied with at all levels of the organisation.  

Financial impact and cash flow. This is a crucial activity for any council as it determines the survival or otherwise of the institution. Together with management, 

council regularly reviewed the near-term and longer-term financial impact of the pandemic on the college. Management assumptions underlying any revenue or 

cash projections were fully understood and interrogated.  

Risk oversight. The Council oversaw management’s efforts to identify, prioritize and manage the principal risks to operations posed by Covid-19.To this end 

Council needed more regular updates from college management between regularly scheduled council meetings. Council also monitored if business continuity 

plans were in place and if these were appropriate. Overall, the Council had the responsibility to strike the right balance between upholding good corporate 

governance and effectively addressing the impact of Covid-19.  

 

 

KABELO MOLOANTOA 

CHAIRPERSON OF COUNCIL  
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4. THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S FOREWORD 

2020 will always be remembered as the year during which we were all compelled to change and to adapt.  “Normal” could no longer be defined as “conforming 

to a standard; usual or typical” as per the Oxford Dictionary.  Instead, everything about life as we knew it had changed and the “new normal” as we so fondly refer 

to in these times, evolved.  The educational sector was particularly hard hit by compulsory change and adjustment, but we soon realised that our survival as a 

leading institution in the TVET College Sector depended on our very ability to adapt quickly and to respond to our circumstances with innovation and enthusiasm, 

no matter how difficult it proved to be at times. 

 

This Annual Report is presented against this very unusual reality that unfolded across the globe in 2020.  Although there were setbacks and the College could 

not deliver on all its strategic targets as it wished to do, the management, staff and students of ORBIT College chose not to surrender to these dire circumstances.  

Instead, innovative thinking and fresh approaches to effective teaching and learning practices became a priority, all in an effort to save the academic year while 

saving lives.  This Report provides evidence and reports of all the activities, initiatives and events that took place and the strategic decisions that were taken in 

2020 in an attempt to meet attainable targets, while redirecting and refocusing where necessary. 

 

Some of the success stories that countered an otherwise very challenging and stressful academic year include the hosting of a first ever virtual graduation 

ceremony for over 400 compliant graduates, the establishment of a student portal for online learning, hosting of a first ever virtual open day that was attended by 

more than 1000 stakeholders and presenting learning content on GauTV and the DHET website as part of a TVET College team, amongst others.  The proper 

implementation of these initiatives together with a comprehensive student support services plan and online teaching and learning plan resulted in headcount 

enrolments of 8 472 as well as an 80.52% pass rate for NCV Level 4 students and 84.08% pass rate for Business Studies N6 students.  However, the pass rate 

for N6 Engineering Studies remained challenging and a special effort will be made in 2021 to improve results of our students enrolled for the Trimester 

programmes.  Another point worth highlighting is that despite difficult economic times, the Centre of Entrepreneurship (Rustenburg Campus) continued to 

contribute towards building the economy through supporting the establishment of viable SMME businesses that created jobs and wealth. 

 

Provision was made for effective student support services inclusive of entry and on course academic and social support.  Work placement opportunities for exiting 

students remained a challenge because of the pandemic and the consequent national lockdown restrictions.  
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As a College we should be justifiably proud of the initiatives and achievements accomplished in 2020, but we should not lose sight of the fact that our ability to 

adapt and change our services to meet each client’s unique need within the new landscape that the COVID 19 pandemic has crafted for the TVET College sector 

will determine our success in the future. It gives me pleasure as the Principal and Accounting officer of ORBIT College to present the Annual Report 2020 to our 

valuable stakeholders   I furthermore commit myself and the resources of ORBIT TVET College to keep striving for improvement, innovation and consequent 

success in positively changing the life of every student who joins our institution and who becomes an orbitant for life! 

 

 

______________ 

DIKA MOKOENA 

PRINCIPAL/ACCOUNTING OFFICER  
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY 

 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

 
1. All information and amounts disclosed throughout annual report are consistent. 

2. The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Department of Higher Education and Training. 

3. The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant standards, frameworks and guidelines issued by National Treasury. 

4. The accounting officer, i.e. the principal, is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in this document. 

5. The accounting officer, i.e. the principal, is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide 

reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial 

statements. 

6. The Auditor-General and/or external auditors express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements. 

 
In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of ORBIT 
TVET College for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 
 
 
_____________ 
MOKOENA DIKA 
PRINCIPAL/ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
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6. LEGISLATION AND OTHER DIRECTIVES 

6.1 Legislative Framework 

ORBIT TVET College is enjoined by Section 44(3) of the Act, read in conjunction with section 25(3) of the same Act to prepare and submit to the Minister for Higher 

Education and Training an annual report. 
 

In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational 
education and training (TVET) colleges are required to produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional reporting requirement established 
by the Minister.  Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of its performance and its use of available resources.   
 

In addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the College in terms of achievement of its strategic and performance objectives.  
 

6.2 Legislative and Other Mandates 
In terms of Sections 25(3) and 25(4) of the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended), public technical and vocational 
education and training (TVET) colleges are required to produce annual financial reports and to comply with any reasonable additional reporting requirement established 
by the Minister.  Moreover, Section 44 of the Act requires colleges to annually report to the Minister in respect of its performance and its use of available resources. In 
addition, these pieces of legislation govern and steer the college in terms of achievement of its strategic and performance objectives.  
 
Further sets of legislation that impact on the TVET Colleges Sector and its strategic and national imperatives are listed below: 
o National Qualifications Framework (NQF) Act (No 67 of 2008); 

o Higher Education (HE) Act (No 101 of 1997); 

o Skills Development Act (No 97 of 1998); 

o Skills Development Levies Act (no 9 of 1999); and 

o General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act (No 58 of 2001). 

In addition, the White Paper for Post-School Education and Training mandates delivery and strategic priorities in the TVET Colleges sector.  Other policy mandates 
include: 
o National Trade Testing Regulations; 

o SETA Grant Regulations; 

o National Skills Development Strategy; 

o Public TVET College Attendance and Punctuality Policy; and  

o Policy on the Conduct of National Examinations and Assessment.  
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PART B: GOVERNANCE 
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7. REPORT OF COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON 

The following report on Governance is extracted from the ORBIT TVET College Statute and serves to point out the constitution, duties, governance structure and terms of 

reference for Council Committees. 
 

Subject to the Continuing Education and Training (CET) Colleges Act, No 16 of 2006 (as amended) and the College Statute the Council governs ORBIT TVET College.  
 

To facilitate good governance and effective management, the boundaries between the two must be discussed and clearly defined.  If the boundaries between governance and 
management are blurred, it may lead to tensions, conflicts of interest and ultimately to organisational non-performance. 
 

While governance is the process of making, and monitoring compliance, of policies to regulate the delivery of services towards the achievement of organisational goals, 
management is the process of planning, organising, leading and controlling the resources of an organisation to achieve organisational goals as effectively and efficiently as 
possible. 
 

Furthermore, the King I, II, III and IV Reports on Corporate Governance, which is applicable to all organisations, including TVET Colleges, emphasises the need for the Council 
of a College to be independent and to avoid conflicts of interest.   
 

The following 2 quotations from the King III report provide credence to this statement: 
 

(i) “A director is a steward of the company. The ethics of governance requires that in this stewardship role, each director be faithful to the four basic ethical values of good 

corporate governance (responsibility, accountability, fairness and transparency).”  

 

(ii) “The non-executive director plays an important role in providing judgment independent of management on issues facing the company.  Not being involved in the management 

of the company defines the director as non-executive.  Non-executive directors are independent of management on all issues including strategy, performance, sustainability, 

resources, transformation, diversity, employment equity, standards of conduct and evaluation of performance. 

 

The independence of the Council demands that non-executive or independent members: 
 

(i) do not have direct or indirect interest in the College.  

(ii) do not function in any executive capacity nor have not been employed by the College in any such capacity for the preceding three financial years. 

(iii) are not professional advisers to the College. 

(iv) are free from any business or other relationship that could be seen to interfere materially with the individual's capacity to act in an independent manner. 
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7.1 CONSTITUTION OF THE COLLEGE COUNCIL AND GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES  
7.1.1 COLLEGE COUNCIL 2020 AND ITS DESIGNATED FUNCTIONS 
 
Executive Committee (EXCO) 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP DATE APPOINTED 

Moloantoa K (Dr) Ministerial Appointee Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Chairperson of College Council 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Bogopa MB Ministerial Appointee Section 10 4) (b) member 
Deputy Chairperson of College Council 
Chairperson of Finance Committee 

Appointed 1 May 2019  
 

Dubazana TC Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee Appointed 1 May 2019 

Lefophane MH (Ms) Ministerial Appointee Section 10 4) (b) member 
 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Magolego PM  Section 10 (4) (d) Donor Appointee 
Chairperson of Conditions of Employment Committee 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mathye MG (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (a) member 
Principal of College  

 

Matjiane MS Internal invitee  
Deputy Principal Corporate Services of College 

 

Mosito TJ Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services 
of College 

 

Mokhethi T Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Finance of College 

 

 

Council Members 
SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP DATE APPOINTED 

Ramaru MS Section 10 (4) (e) member 
Lecturing staff representative 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mangoma APC (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee Appointed 1 May 2019 

Mokale AT Section 10 (4) (f)l member 
Support staff representative 

Appointed 1 May 2019 

Kabini Z (Ms) Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member Appointed May 2020 

Singh R Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee Appointed 1 May 2019 

Letsoalo SM Section 10 (4) (c) 
Academic Board Representative 

Appointed 1 May 2019 
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Mamaile L (Dr) Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member Appointed 1 May 2020 

Phala CR Section 10 (4) (g) 
SRC President 

Term ended September 2020 

Baloyi K (Ms) Section 10 (4) (g) 
SRC President 

Term started October 2020 

Bogale MM Section 10 (4) (g) 
SRC Secretary 

Term ended December 2019 

Matshatsha K (Ms) Section 10 (4) (g) 
SRC Secretary 

Term started October 2020 

 

7.1.2 COUNCIL SUB-COMMITTEES 
 
Audit and Risk Sub-committee Members 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Carrim I External Appointee 

Fourie W (Ms) External Appointee 

Kgalaki R External Appointee 

Mangoma P (Ms)2 Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
Chairperson of Audit and Risk Sub-committee  

Matjiane MS3 Internal Invitee 
Deputy Principal Corporate Services 

Mokhethi T4 Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Finance of College 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Principal of College  

Sebaetse M1 Internal Invitee 

Tshabangwe M Internal invitee 
Internal Audit and Assurance Manager  

1 Mr M Sebaetse left the College in June 2020 
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Finance Sub-committee Members 
 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Bogopa B1 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
Chairperson of Finance Sub-committee  

Mathye MG (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
 

Singh R Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Principal of College  

Mokhethi T4 Internal invitee Deputy Principal Finance of College  

Visser M (Ms) Internal Invitee – Finance Manager 
 

 

Conditions of Employment sub-committee members 

 
SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

P Magolego2 Section 10 (4) (d) Donor Appointee 
Chairperson of conditions of employment committee 

B Bogopa Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
 

T Dubazana Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 
 

Z Kabini (Ms)1 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 

G Mafojane Internal invitee – Finance Manager 

MS Matjiane Internal invitee  
Deputy Principal Corporate Services of College 

DF Mokoena Internal Member Section 10 (4) (a) member 
Principal of College  

1 Ms Z Kabini was appointed as a member of Council in May 2020 and replaced Mr P Magolego on the Committee 
2 Mr P Magolego left the Committee to join the Planning and Resource Committee as Mr Magolego is the Donor appointment of the College Council and his roles and responsibilities were more 
Planning and Resource related. 
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Planning and Resource sub-committee members 
 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

JL Mamaile (Dr) Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 

Bogopa B2 Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 

Magolego P3 Section 10 (4) (d) Donor Appointee 

Matjiane MS Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Corporate Services of College 

Mokhethi T4 Internal invitee 
Deputy Principal Finance of College (Appointed June 2019) 

Mokoena DF Internal Member Section 10 (4) (b) member 
Principal of College (Appointed June 2018) 

Mathye MG (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member Appointee 

Matlou P Internal invitee 
Business Development and Innovation Manager 

Magolego P Ministerial Appointee Section 10(4) (b) member 

Sebaetse M Internal invitee 
 

Merementsi A Internal invitee 
Capital Infrastructure & Efficiency Grant Project Manager 

1 Dr JL Mamaile was appointed as a member of Council in May 2020  
2 Mr P Matlou joined the Committee in August 2020 
3 Mr A Merementsi joined the Committee in August 2020 
4 Mr M Sebaetse left the College in June 2020 

 
Council Members serving on the Academic Board 
 

SURNAME & INITIALS  DESIGNATED FUNCTION AND MEMBERSHIP 

Lefophane MH (Ms) Ministerial Appointee Section 10 4) (b) member 
 

Mathye MG (Ms) Section 10 (6) Additional member appointee 
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7.1.3 APPOINTMENTS MADE IN 2020 IN TERMS OF SECTIONS 10 (4) AND 10(6) OF THE CET ACT 
 
There following appointments were made on the ORBIT TVET College Council in 2020: 
 

NAME ROLE 

Dr LJ Mamaile 
 

Section 10 (4) (b) 
Dr Mamaile has been appointed to serve on the Planning and Resource Committee of 
the Council 

Ms ZM Kabini 
 

Section 10 (4) (b) 
Ms Kabini has been appointed to serve on the Conditions of Employment Committee of 
the Council and is currently also the Chairperson of the Conditions of Employment 
Committee 

 
7.1.4 MEETINGS HELD BY COUNCIL IN 2020 

 
EXCO Meetings 

Date of Meeting Type of Meeting 

10 March 2020 General Meeting 1 of 2020 

17 March 2020 Special Meeting 

12 May 2020 Virtual Special Meeting 

23 June 2020 Virtual General Meeting 2 of 2020 

8 September 2020 Virtual General Meeting 3 of 2020 

18 November 2020 Virtual General Meeting 4 of 2020 

 
Council Meetings 

Date of Meeting Type of Meeting 

21 February 2020 Special Meeting 

17 March 2020 General Meeting 1 of 2020 

30 June 2020 Virtual General Meeting 2 of 2020 

2 September 2020 Virtual Special Meeting 

16 September 2020 Virtual General Meeting 3 of 2020 

10 November 2020 Virtual Special Meeting 

24 November 2020 Virtual General Meeting 4 of 2020 
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Other Council Meetings 

Date of Meeting Purpose of Meeting 

10 January2020 Alignment of Committee Charters 

13 January 2020 

30 January 2020 Meeting with Student Representative Council 

26 May 2020 Virtual Post Provisioning Norms (PPN) Meeting 

17 June 2020 Virtual DHET and Parliamentary Meeting 

10 July 2020 Virtual DHET Council Induction 

4 August 2020 Meeting with BD & I Manager 

4 September 2020 

15 October 2020 

3 November 2020 

28 July 2020 Virtual TVET CGC Meeting 

15 August 2020 

15 October 2020 Virtual Meeting with DPF regarding AG Audit 

3 - 4 November 2020 Internal Council Induction and Training 

13 November 2020 Virtual Graduation Ceremony 

 
 

Audit and Risk Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Type of meeting 

3 March 2020 General Meeting 1 of 2020 

18 June 2020 Virtual General Meeting 2 of 2020 

31 July 2020 Virtual Special Meeting 

1 September 2020 Virtual General Meeting 3 of 2020 

5 November 2020 Virtual Special Meeting 

9 November 2020 Virtual General Meeting 4 of 2020 
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Finance Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Type of Meeting 

12 February 2020 General Meeting 1 of 2020 

5 March 2020 Special Meeting 

9 June 2020 General Meeting 2 of 2020 

27 August 2020 General Meeting 3 of 2020 

5 November 2020 General Meeting 4 of 2020 

 
Conditions of Employment Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Type of Meeting 

23 January 2020 Special Meeting 

6 February 2020 General Meeting 1 of 2020 

27 May 2020 Virtual General Meeting 2 of 2020 

18 August 2020 Virtual General Meeting 3 of 2020 

1 October 2020 Virtual General Meeting 4 of 2020 

 
Planning and Resource Sub-Committee Meetings 

Date of Meeting Type of Meeting 

19 February 2020 General Meeting 1 of 2020 

11 June 2020 Virtual General Meeting 2 of 2020 

19 August 2020 Virtual General Meeting 3 of 2020 

14 October 2020 Virtual General Meeting 4 of 2020 

9 November 2020 Virtual Special Meeting 

19 November 2020 Site Visit 
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7.1.5 PERFORMANCE OF COUNCIL TERMS OF ITS STATUTORY FUNCTIONS, EXPLAINED IN SECTION 10(1) – (3) OF THE CET ACT 
 

7.1.5.1 Duties of the College Council 
 

Without derogating from the generality of subsection (1), the Council - 
a. makes rules for the College;  
b. establishes the Council Committees and determines the composition and functions of each committee;  
c. establishes, in consultation with the Academic Board, joint Committees of the Council and the Academic Board to perform functions which are common 

to the Council and the Academic Board;  
d. subject to applicable policy and the approval of the Director-General, determines the student admission policy of the College, after consultation with the 

Academic Board;  
e. determines and provides student support services after consultation with the SRC;  
f. subject to the approval of the Director-General, determines the language policy of the College, after consultation with the Academic Board;  
g. determines tuition fees, accommodation fees and any other fees payable by students as well as accommodation fees payable by employees;  
h. approves the annual budget of the College; and  
i. may conclude a loan or overdraft agreement, with the approval of the Minister.  
 
Without derogating from the generality of subsection (1), the Council –  
a. determines conditions of service, code of conduct and privileges and functions of its employees and may, in the manner set out in the code of conduct, 

suspend or dismiss employees of the College; and  
b. may order an employee of the College who has been suspended to refrain from  being on any premises under the control of the College and to refrain 

from participating in any of the activities of the College, or issue such other conditions as it may consider necessary.  
 

7.1.5.2 Composition of Council  
 

The Council, as contemplated in section 10(4) of the Act, consists of –  
a. the Principal;  
b. five external persons appointed by the Minister;  
c. one member of the Academic Board elected by the Academic Board;  
d. one lecturer elected by the lecturers at the College;  
e. two students of the College elected by the SRC;  
f. one member of the support staff elected by the support staff of the College;  
g. one external member representing donors; and  
h. at least four members contemplated in section 10(6) of the Act with a broad spectrum of competencies in the fields of education, business, finance, law, 

marketing, information technology and human resource management appointed by the Council in consultation with the Minister.   
 

At least 60% of the members of the Council must be external persons who are not employed by the Minister or Council, or are not students of the College.  
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The Council members contemplated in Section 10(8) and (9) of the Act must have knowledge and experience relevant to the objects and governance of the College. 
 
7.1.5.3 Council Governance Structure 

  
 
 
  

External Stakeholder Representatives  
(60 % of Members) 

 
-  5 Members appointed by Minister 

  4 Additional Persons  
  (from Public,  Business and Labour with financial, legal 

and human resource skills) 
- Donor 

Institutional Representatives 
(40 % of Members) 

-  Principal 
-  1 Lecturer 
- 1 Support Staff Member 
- 1 Academic Board  Representative 
- 2 Student Representatives (SRC) 

Academic Board 
(Ad Hoc Members as deemed necessary) 
- Chairperson (Principal) 
- Deputy Chairperson (Deputy Principal Academic and 

Student Support Services) 
- 2 College Council Representatives 
- 2 SRC Student Representatives 
- Lecturing Staff (3 Campuses) 
-  Campus Managers 
-  Student Support Manager 
-  Vocational Programmes Manager 

- Artisan Development Manager 

Student Representative Council 
(Ad Hoc Members as deemed necessary) 
- President  
- Deputy President  
- Secretary 
- Vice - Secretary 
- Treasurer 
- Academic Development & Alumni 
- Disciplinary and Legal 
- Health, Wellness and Student Residences 
-  Public Relations  

- Sports and Recreation 

- Arts and Culture 

- Gender and Disability 

Executive Committee (EXCO) 

Chairperson 
Deputy Chairperson 
Secretary 
Principal  
Chairpersons of Council Committees 
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External stakeholder representatives constitute 60% of members and institutional representatives constitute 40% of members 

11 members (Chairperson, Vice-chairperson, Secretary, Principal, Chairpersons of Council Committees, Deputy Principals) 

6 Committee members (1 x external member of Council to chair, 3 external members with appropriate expertise in the field of Information Technology, 
Finance, Risk Management, Law and Auditing,  appointed by Council and 2 internal staff members namely the Principal and Internal Audit and Assurance 
Manager) 

5 Committee members (3 External members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson) and 1 internal staff member namely the Deputy Principal 
Corporate Services and 1 invited member namely the HR Manager) 

6 Committee members (3 External Members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson) and 3 internal staff members namely the Principal, Deputy 
Principal Finances and 1 invited members namely the Finance Manager) 

7 Committee members (3 External Members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson) and 3 internal staff members namely the Principal, 2 Deputy 
Principals and 1 invited member namely the Supply Chain Manager) 

  

COLLEGE COUNCIL

Executive 
Committee

(EXCO)

Audit and Risk 
Committee

Conditions of 
Employment 
Committee

Finance
Committee

Planning and 
Resource 

Committee
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7.1.5.5 TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR GOVERNANCE AND COUNCIL COMMITTEES 
 

a) Terms of Reference for Council Committees 

  
 Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee meets: 

 one week before scheduled Council meetings  

 when the need arises when an urgent matter needs attention, and decision needs to be made  

 when a mandate has been received from the Council to finalise a specific matter  

 
Purpose of the Executive meeting before regular scheduled Council Meetings: 
To receive and discuss reports and recommendations from Council Sub Committees and Management. 

 

b) Audit and Risk Committee 

An independent Audit and Risk Committee fulfils a vital role in corporate governance. The Audit and Risk Committee is a critical component in ensuring the 
integrity of integrated reporting and financial controls, the proper identification and management of financial risks and the integrity of the reporting practices.  

  
The Audit and Risk Committee should meet as frequently as necessary to perform its role, but should meet at least four times a year. 

 
 Purpose of the committee: 

To ensure compliance with the best financial and accounting practices and standards, and to oversee the management of risk in the organisation. 
The Audit and Risk Committee should oversee the College’s reporting and assurance functions and review aspects of risk and sustainability issues where it is 
mandated to do so by the Council. 
 

c) Finance Committee 

The Finance Committee should meet at least four time per year or more often as circumstances require, keep minutes of proceedings and report regularly 
to Council. The Finance Committee may invite to its meetings any council member, officer of the College or such other person as it deems appropriate to assist 
it in performing its responsibilities. 

  
Purpose of the committee: 
To consider matters of financial strategy and policy and to optimise the use of financial resources 
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d) Conditions of Employment Committee 

The Conditions of Employment Committee should meet regularly, not less than four times per year, and at such other times as may be requested by the 
Chairperson of the Committee.  No executive officer should attend a portion of any meeting where such an executive’s performance or compensation is 
discussed, unless specifically invited by the Conditions of Employment Committee. 

 
Purpose of the Committee: 
 
To approve Human Resource Management policies and monitor their implementation. 

 

e) Planning and Resource Committee 

The Planning and Resource Committee should meet regularly, not less than four times per year, and at such other time as may be requested by the 
Chairperson of the Committee. A member must attend a minimum of 3 meetings in a financial year, failure of which, the member’s conduct should be referred 
to the Chairperson of the College Council for intervention and may lead to permanent dismissal from the Committee. 

 
Purpose of the committee: 
To assist the Council in its duties relating to the planning, management and maintenance of infrastructure and capital expenditure for infrastructure 
expansion and diversification of programmes inclusive of ICT infrastructure and compliance with health, safety and environmental legislation and policies 
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7.2 REPORTS BY COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL 
 

7.2.1 REPORT OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
 

7.2.1.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 

In terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act 2006 the Finance Committee (FINCOM) was established as an independent Oversight 

Committee on financial affairs of ORBIT College. The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. 

The Committee presents its report on quarterly basis and annually for the financial year ending 31 December 2020. 

 

7.2.1.2 FINANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 

The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of 3 External members of Council (one member appointed as the Chairperson of the FINCOM), and 

consists of the members listed below. During the period under review, four meetings were held.  

 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

B Bogopa Member 5 5 

MG Mathye (Ms) Member 5 5 

R Singh Member 5 3 

T Mokhethi Member 5 5 

DF Mokoena Member 5 3 

M Visser (Ms) Invitee 4 4 
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7.2.1.3 FINANCE COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

As at the 31 December 2020 the FINCOM reported that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant 

legislative requirements. The FINCOM has during the period under review considered all matters of financial strategy and policy, and optimised the use of ORBIT 

college’s financial resources. 

 

7.2.1.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

During the period under review the FINCOM has effectively and efficiently executed the following responsibilities: 

 

a. Approved finance policies and monitor compliance. 

b. Overseen the preparation of the annual budget and financial statements. 

c. Considered and approved financial strategies and objectives as recommended by the Deputy Principal Finances in support of adopted development and 

growth plans for the College. 

d. Monitored financial performance against budgets.  

e. Overseen the administration, collection, and disbursement of the financial resources of the College. 

f. Advised the Council with respect to making significant financial decisions. 

g. Considered and assessed all investment opportunities available to the College, in respect of all funds which it administers, and to determine the manner and 

extent to which funds are to be invested with a view to ensuring both security and optimisation of income. 

h. Reviewed the actual and projected financial situation of the College as required, including among other matters, the respective level of debt, the sources of 

financing and the College’s financial ratios. 

i. Reviewed the financial aspects of any acquisitions submitted to the Council; and as delegated to the Finance Sub-Committee by the Council, to review and 

approve any acquisitions covered by such delegation.  

j. Monitored the performance of the Finance Component of the College. 
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7.2.1.5 CONCLUSION 

The FINCOM fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the Learners of 

the College. 

 

7.2.1.6 APPRECIATION 

The FINCOM would like to express its sincere appreciation to the Council Chairperson and all Members, Principal (Accounting Officer), Management, Officials, 

Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA) and the ORBIT college’s Finance Unit for their support to the FINCOM during the year under review. 

 
 
 
 

BOGOPA MB 
CHAIRPERSON: FINANCE COMMITTEE 
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7.2.2 REPORT OF THE CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
 

7.2.2.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The Conditions of Employment Committee (HRCOM) has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education 
and Training Act 2006. The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Committee presents 
its report for the financial year ended 31 December 2020. 

 
7.2.2.2 CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 

The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of 3 external members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson), and consists of the members 
listed below:  

 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

B Bogopa Member 5 5 

T Dubazana Member 5 2 

Z Kabini(Ms)1 Member 2 2 

G Mafojane Invitee 5 5 

PM Magolego2 Member 3 3 

MS Matjiane Member 5 5 

DF Mokoena Member 5 4 

1 Ms Z Kabini was appointed as a member of Council in May 2020 and replaced Mr P Magolego on the Committee 
2 Mr P Magolego left the Committee to join the Planning and Resource Committee as Mr Magolego is the Donor appointment of the College Council and his roles and responsibilities were more Planning and Resource related. 

 
7.2.2.3 CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
 

The CoECOM reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
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7.2.2.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
 

The CoECOM has effectively and efficiently executed the following responsibilities: 
 

a. Periodically reviewed and approved new human resource policies of the College. 
b. Monitored the College performance against its HR or workforce plan. 
c. Reviewed the total compensation practices of the College.  
d. Monitored the performance management and development systems and their impact on individual and organisational performance. 
e. Reviewed and approve the organisational structure and post establishment of the College. 
f. Monitored the College performance against defined strategic HR targets. 
g. Monitored systems and procedures for all Council-approved human resources and employment equity policies  
h. Monitored the management development programmes of the College. 
 

i.Reviewed and reported to the full Council, with recommendations, the following: 
 

i. the ethical standards of the College to ensure that Management has identified the values that determine acceptable behaviour in the College and has 
put in place a process that ensures these values are reflected in actions that are taken within the College. 

ii. the periodic review of the College Code of Ethics and Conduct. 
iii. compliance under the College Code of Ethics and Conduct. 

 
7.2.2.5 CONCLUSION 
 

The CoECOM fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the students of 
the College. 

 
7.2.2.6 APPRECIATION 
 

The CoECOM expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Officials, Auditor-General South Africa and the Human 
Resource Unit for their support to the HRCOM during the year under review. 
 

  
 MAGOLEGO PM 

CHAIRPERSON:  CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE  



35 
 

7.2.3 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
 

7.2.3.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act 
2006. The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Committee presents its report for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2020. 

 
7.2.3.2 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 

The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of four members, and consists of the members listed below. During the year under review, eight meetings 
were held which includes meetings with the Accounting Officer, Internal Audit and Senior Management. Various stakeholders such as the Auditor-General were 
invited to some of the meetings.  
 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

I. Carrim External Member 6 6 

W. Fourie (Ms) External Member 6 6 

R. Kgalaki External Member 6 5 

P. Mangoma (Ms) Council Member 6 4 

MS Matjiane Invitee 6 3 

T Mokhethi Invitee 6 6 

DF Mokoena Member 6 5 

M Sebaetse1 Invitee 3 3 

M Tsabangwe Invitee 6 6 
 
1 Mr M Sebaetse left the College in June 2020.  
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7.2.3.3 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
  
The ARC reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
 

7.2.3.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
The ARC has considered the work performed by Internal Audit on a quarterly basis and has reviewed the Internal Audit Annual Report on Internal Controls for 
the year ended 31 December 2020. In line with relevant legislation and good cooperate governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the ARC and 
Management with the assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective with emphasis on continuous improvement to strengthen the internal 
controls. The majority of audit findings reported to the Committee related to the control activities and monitoring components. In relation to the aspect of monitoring, 
the audits indicated a lack of management and supervisory reviews to ensure: 
 

 compliance with legislation, regulations, policies and procedures; 

 the design and implementation of adequate controls; and 

 that implemented controls operate effectively. 
 

Management intervention is required to effect improvement in these areas. Focus and prioritisation should be given to identified control areas that put at risk the 
College achieving its key objectives. 
 

7.2.3.5 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
Risk management has been formalised within the College, in relation to the establishment of various structures, processes and systems to give effect to risk 
management. Further initiatives are required to further embed risk management in the College’s processes. This includes further clarifying roles and 
responsibilities, improving training, developing performance measurements, monitoring compliance with the integrated risk management policy and framework, 
and consistent application of approach. 
 

7.2.3.6 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Accounting Policies that forms part of the Annual Financial Statements (AFS) were reviewed during each ARC meeting were the AFS were discussed. The ARC 
is content with appropriateness and compliance of the accounting policies with all relevant legislation. 
 

7.2.3.7 REVIEW OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The ARC noted and recommended approval of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 as presented by Management.  
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The ARC noted the progress to date and advised Management to address outstanding balances and disclosures for final review by the ARC. The Committee 
further advised Management to ensure that the AFS are submitted to the Auditor-General before on the submission date.  
 

7.2.3.8 COMBINED ASSURANCE 
 

Regular engagements occurred between assurance providers to give effect to the Combined Assurance Framework. These engagements continue to be 
developed and enhanced to make combined assurance in the College more effective. The Committee regularly reviews developments in this area. 

 
7.2.3.9 INTERNAL AUDIT 

 
The ARC is satisfied that the internal Audit activity is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks pertinent to the College in its Audit engagements.  
 
The ARC approved internal Audit’s strategic documents for 2020. The 2020 operational plan was implemented by internal Audit and monitored by the ARC on a 
quarterly basis. 
 

7.2.3.10 PROHIBITED EXPENDITURE 

 
The ARC is recommending that Management improve and develop a standardised mechanism in ensuring that unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure is avoided. 
 

7.2.3.11 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) GOVERNANCE 
 
The ARC is recommending to Management to give more focus on the IT Governance framework for the College. This will enable the Committee and College to 
achieve their objectives in relation to IT governance.  

 
7.2.3.12 CONCLUSION 

 
The ARC concurs and accepts the conclusions of both Internal Audit and the Auditor-General. The Committee is of the opinion that the Audited Annual Financial 
Statements should be accepted and read together with the Report of the Auditor General.  The Committee fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied 
in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the Learners of the College. 
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7.2.3.12 APPRECIATION 

 

The ARC expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Officials, Auditor-General South Africa and the Internal Audit for 
their support to the ARC during the year under review. 
 
 
MANGOMA APC (Ms) 
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE 
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7.2.4 REPORT OF THE PLANNING AND RESOURCE COMMITTEE TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
 

7.2.4.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The Planning and Resource Committee (PRC) has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and 
Training Act 2006. The Committee has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Committee presents its 
report for the financial year ended 31 December 2020. 

 
7.2.4.2 PLANNING AND RESOURCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 

The Committee’s Terms of Reference requires a minimum of 4 external members of Council (one of whom is the Chairperson), and consists of the members 
listed below. During the year under review, four meetings were held.  
 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings attended 

MB Bogopa Member 5 5 

T Dubazana Member 5 3 

P Magolego Member 5 5 

JL Mamaile (Dr)1 Member 3 3 

MG Mathye Member 5 5 

MS Matjiane Member 5 1 

P Matlou2 Invitee 3 1 

A Merementsi3 Invitee 3 3 

T Mokhethi Member 5 4 

DF Mokoena Member 5 5 

M Sebaetse4 Member 2 2 
1 Dr JL Mamaile was appointed as a member of Council in May 2020  
2 Mr P Matlou joined the Committee in August 2020 
3 Mr A Merementsi joined the Committee in August 2020 
4 Mr M Sebaetse left the College in June 2020  
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7.2.4.3 PLANNING AND RESOURCE COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 
 

The P&RComm reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
7.2.4.4 EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

 

The P&RComm has effectively and efficiently executed the following responsibilities: 
 

a. Recommended to Council to approve the College infrastructure planning, management and maintenance and supply chain policies and monitor compliance 
and implementation. 

b. Monitored the management of the facilities register and its associated maintenance and construction activities. 
c. Reviewed the actual and projected capital needs of the College as required, including among other matters, the sources of financing and related implications 

noting the mandate of expansion for TVET Colleges. 
d. Recommended the College five-year capital expenditure programme.  

 

e. Overseen the execution of capital projects, including that: 
 

i. each project meets the strategic and technical specifications and deliverables. 
ii. all project-related risks have been identified and mitigated. 
iii. critical decisions, project parameters and governance processes are followed and addressed prior to committing funds. 
iv. each project enhances the portfolio value of the College. 

 

f. Reviewed the performance of the College Supply Chain component of the College in terms of operational targets 
g. Overseen the compliance to Health, Safety and Environmental legislation 
h. Monitored the achievement of targets in respect of the Environmental Plan as contained in the annually approved College Operational Plan 
 

7.2.4.5 CONCLUSION 
 

The P&RComm fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the Learners of 
the College. 
 

7.2.4.6 APPRECIATION 
 

The P&RComm expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Officials, Auditor-General South Africa and the Supply Chain 
Unit for their support to the PRC during the year under review. 
 
 
 
  MATHYE MG (MS)  



41 
 

 
7.2.5 REPORT OF THE ACADEMIC BOARD TO THE COUNCIL OF ORBIT COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

7.2.5.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Academic Board has been established as an independent Committee, in terms of section 25 of the Continuing Education and Training Act 2006. The Board 
has adopted formal Terms of Reference, which are regularly updated and approved by Council. The Board presents its report for the financial year ended 31 
December 2020. 
 

7.2.5.2 ACADEMIC BOARD MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 
 

a. The Board’s Terms of Reference requires that the Board consist of the following twenty two members:  
 

- Principal 
- Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services 
- Vocational Programmes Manager 
- Occupational Programmes Manager 
- Student Support Manager 
- Council Members (2 external Council members) 
- SRC Members (2 members) 
- Campus Managers (Brits, Mankwe and Rustenburg Campuses) 
- Head of Department Artisan Development and Partnership (1 to represent all 3 Campuses) 
- NC(V) Engineering Lecturer Representatives (X3 [1 per Campus]) 
- Report 191 Business and Utility Studies Lecturer Representatives (X3 [1 per Campus]) 
- Occupational Programmes Lecturer Representatives (X3 [1 per Campus]) 

 
b. The criteria to elect the 3 lecturer representatives is: 
 

i. Representatives can be elected from any Post Level (PL 1 to 3) – it therefore implies that there is no need for representatives for each level. 
ii. Representatives must be permanently appointed. 
iii. Representatives must have a proven success rate for programmes that they are teaching or have been teaching.  
iv. Representatives must have a thorough understanding of the programme (NC(V)/Report 191/ Occupational Programmes) which they will be representing. 
v. Members of Academic Board do not represent any constituents; they are not stakeholders who are representing the mandates of the constituents they 

come from. 
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vi. Academic Board members must participate in the deliberations in the best interest of the College and deliberate on the College matters to the best of 
their knowledge in their functional area in order to improve governance of the College. 

 
c. The Chairperson of the Academic Board is the Principal of the College. 
d. The Deputy Chairperson of the Academic Board is the Deputy Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services of the College.  
e. The Academic Board consists of the members listed below. During the year under review, four meetings were held.  

 

Member Role Meetings held Meetings 
attended 

Baloyi K (Ms)1 SRC President 1 1 

Galane L2 Academic Development and Alumni 
Representative of the SRC 

5 1 

Kgaboesele B (Ms) Campus Manager Rustenburg 
Campus 

6 6 

Lefophane HM (Ms) Council Representative 6 5 

Letsoalo SM NC(V) Engineering Studies 
Rustenburg Campus 

6 5 

Lupuwana LG NC(V) Business and General 
Studies 
Brits Campus 

6 2 

Mathye MG (Ms) College Council Representative 6 6 

Modiba R (Ms) Student Support Services Manager 
ORBIT TVET College 

6 5 

Mokoena DF Principal 
ORBIT TVET College 

6 4 

Molapi W (Ms) Acting Mankwe Campus 6 6 

Molefe TG Occupational Programmes 
Rustenburg Campus 

6 5 

Molele BS (Ms) NC(V) Business and General 
Studies Rustenburg Campus 

6 5 

Mosito TJ Deputy Principal Academic 
Programmes and Student Support 
Services 

6 5 

Phala C3 SRC President 5 5 
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Member Role Meetings held Meetings 
attended 

Phiri KA Report 191 Engineering Studies 
Brits Campus 

6 2 

Sekhu D (Ms)4 Academic Development and Alumni 
Representative of the SRC 

1 1 

Tlhopile T (Ms) Campus Manager 
Brits Campus 

6 6 

 
1 Ms K Baloyi was an SRC Representative for the 2020/2021 academic year. Her Term of office started October 2020 and she replaced Mr C Phala on the Academic Board. 
2 Mr L Galane was an SRC Representative for the 2019/2020 academic year. His term of office came to an end September 2020. 
3 Mr C Phala was an SRC Representative for the 2019/2020 academic year. His term of office cate to an end September 2020. 
4 Ms D Sekhu was an SRC Representative for the 2020/2021 academic year. Her Term of office started October 2020 and she replaced Mr L Galane on the Academic Board  
 

7.2.5.3 ACADEMIC BOARD RESPONSIBILITY 
 

The Academic Board reports that it has, as far as possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from its charter, including all relevant legislative requirements. 
 
7.2.5.4 DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ACADEMIC BOARD 
 

Subject to the Act, the Academic Board of the College is:  
 
a. is accountable to the Council for:      

 
i. all the teaching, learning, research and academic functions of the College; 
ii. the academic functions of the College and the promotion of the participation of women and the disabled in its learning programmes;  
iii. establishing internal academic monitoring and quality promotion mechanisms;  
iv. ensuring that the requirements of accreditation to provide learning against standards and qualifications registered in the National Qualifications Framework 

are met;  
v. identifying training needs of lecturing staff; and  
vi. performing such other functions as may be delegated or assigned to it by the Council;  

 
b. must:   

 
i. advise the Council on a Code of Conduct and rules concerning students; 
ii. determine, in accordance with any relevant deed or gift and after consultation with the Principal, the conditions applicable to any scholarships and other 
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academic prizes; 
iii. determine the persons to whom scholarships and academic prizes are awarded;  
iv. determine the functions of its Committees as well as the procedure of meetings of these Committees; and  
v. take note of any action taken by a Committee in exercising its delegated powers or functions when such Committee reports its actions to the next meeting of 

the academic board; and 
 
c. may:   
 
i. establish Committees to perform any of its functions, and may for this purpose deem a single person to be a committee;  
ii. make standing orders on procedures and delegation of powers; and  
iii. delegate its functions to a Committee.   
 
d. Without derogating from the generality of subsection (1) the organisation and supervision of instruction and examinations, and of lectures and classes, vest in 

the Academic Board.  
 

e. The Academic Board submits to the Council:   
 

i. such reports upon its work as may be required by the Council;  
ii. recommendations on matters referred to it by the Council; and  
iii. recommendations on any other matter affecting the College that the Academic Board considers useful. 
 

7.2.5.3 CONCLUSION 
 

The Academic Board fully supports the College in its vision, as embodied in the strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the Learners 
of the College. 

 
7.2.5.4 APPRECIATION 
 

The Academic Board expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Student Representative Council, Officials, Auditor-
General South Africa and the Academic Unit for their support to the Academic Board during the year under review. 

 
____________ 
MOKOENA DF 
CHAIRPERSON: ACADEMIC BOARD 
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7.4      STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE COUNCIL REPORT 
 

7.4.1 TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

The ORBIT TVET College Student Representative Council (SRC) Constitution is promulgated with reference to the Continuing Education and Training Colleges 

Act 16 of 2006 and the CET Colleges Amendment Act 3 of 2012 and the Continuing Education and Training (CET) College Act 16 of 2006 in line with the 
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa.  
 

Being the umbrella body of all student organisations, the SRC aims at unifying students of the College, in order to contribute to the advancement of the students’ 
interest in the academic, extra-curricular, social, cultural and extra-mural spheres. 

 

7.4.2 SRC ELECTIONS 
 

The SRC consists of 12 elected members at College level. The Committee is elected by a democratic process through a secret ballot and the process is led by 
an Independent Electoral company. Campus SRC Chairpersons stand for the position of president. The chairperson with the highest number of votes becomes 
President and the 2nd highest with votes becomes the deputy president. The 3rd Chairperson with the lowest number of votes will fill the position of Disciplinary 
and Legal Officer. The Campus Secretary with the highest number of votes becomes the Secretary - General, the second highest becomes the Vice-Secretary 
and the third becomes Gender and Disability officer. The rest of the Office Bearers of the SRC Executive Committee must be serving the same portfolios at 
campus level.  

 

Office Bearers for the SRC Executive Committee are as follows: 
i. President 

ii. Deputy President 

iii. Secretary - General 

iv. Vice-Secretary 

v. Treasurer - General 

vi. Academic Development & Alumni 

vii. Disciplinary and Legal Officer 

viii. Health & Wellness 

ix. PRO 

x. Sport & Recreation 
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xi. Arts & Culture 

xii. Gender & Disability  

Qualifying 2019 elected SRC members served as Interim SRC members for 2020. The structure was allowed to serve the students in 2020 until SRC elections 
are held. 2020 SRC elections were not held in February 2020 as it was planned due to internal challenges. The decision was supported by Management Board, 
Academic Board and Council.  
 
The elections for SRC 2020/21 was then conducted on 13 October 2020. There were only 11 elected members of the SRC after the elections as the other 
candidates did not meet the eligibility criteria. Out of the 11 elected SRC members 08 served at Executive level. It is planned that the outstanding 13 portfolios 
elections will be conducted early in 2021. 

 

7.4.3 MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS 

SRC Executive Committee 

No. Member Portfolio Campus 

1 Ms Kelebogile Baloyi President Brits 

2 Ms Karabo Matsieme Deputy President Rustenburg 

3 Ms Kwena Matshatsha Secretary - General Rustenburg 

4 Mr Mokhutshwane Letlhogonolo Deputy Secretary Brits 

5 Ms Sanah Segoto Treasurer - General Brits 

6 Ms Diakanyo Sekhu Academic Development and Alumni Officer Mankwe 

7 Mr Nkosipendule Gaonathebe Disciplinary and Legal Officer Mankwe 

8 Ms Kelebogile Moraka Gender and Disability Officer Mankwe 

 

SRC Non – Executive members  

No. Member Portfolio Campus 

1 Ms Boitumelo Mfati Treasurer Rustenburg 

2 Mr Tshepo Sikoane Academic Development Officer Rustenburg 

3 Mr Joseph Mokhutswane 
 

Secretary  Brits 

 
7.4.4 REPRESENTATION ON OTHER BODIES 

The SRC President (Ms Kelebogile Baloyi) and the SRC Secretary (Ms Kwena Matshatsha) served on the College Council.   
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The following members were democratically elected to serve on each of the committees as indicated: 

Name Portfolio Committee 

Ms Kelebogile Baloyi 
Ms Karabo Matsieme 
Ms Sanah Segoto 
Ms Diakanyo Sekhu 
Ms Boitumelo Mfati 

President 
Deputy President 
Treasurer- General 
Mankwe Campus Treasurer  
Rustenburg Campus Treasurer 

 
 
Financial Aid Committee of the College 
 

Mr Nkosipendule 
Gaonathebe 

Disciplinary and Legal Officer Disciplinary committee for students 

Ms Kelebogile Baloyi 
Ms Diakanyo Sekhu 

President 
Academic Development Officer 

Academic Board 

 
The SRC is established to: 
 
a. function as a channel of communication between the Student Body and the Staff Leadership Team; 
 
b. provide a channel of communication between the students of this College and Students of other Institutions; 
 
c. crystallize the needs and aspirations of students and to make known their problems and point-of-views; 
 
d. seek clarification on general academic issues and Student community issues, conducting the dialogue and consultation within the parameters of 

regulations embedded within the College; 
 
e. promote the spirit of harmony and unity among Students and Staff of each Campus and the College; 
 
f. establish a solid identity amongst the Students and to help ensure that they are treated with the respect and dignity they deserve. 

 
7.4.5 SRC INDUCTION/TRAINING  

All elected SRC members undergo training and induction in governance and leadership development immediately after their election.  The training not only 
focuses on specific responsibilities and tasks assigned and managed by the SRC, but also bears a very strong focus on relevant legislation, regulations as well 
as the SRC Constitution.  This enables the SRC to fulfil their role with the necessary confidence and accountability that it requires. The SRC also receives Unit 
standard based capacity building training focusing on topics such as leadership, meeting skills, communication skills, governance, management and project.  

 
Guidance and mentorship are provided by Student Support Officers at the different campuses under the supervision of the Student Support Manager and Deputy 
Principal Academic Programmes and Student Support Services staff at Central Office. 
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7.4.6  SRC BUDGET 
The SRC is responsible for managing their own budget which is approved by Council. The execution of all SRC activities is subject to the availability of funds as 
allocated in the budget.  The SRC budget was also used to cover administrative costs (stationery, phone calls, travelling costs).  The treasurer handled all financial 
queries, processes and kept relevant records of income and expenditure. 

 
7.4.7 ACTIVITY PLAN FOR SRC 

SRC members at the different campuses are responsible for drawing up and implementing annual campus activity plans.  Activities that are hosted by the different 
campus SRCs differ from campus to campus.  However, a number of activities also involve the SRC as College Representative Body.  Below is the College 
activity plan that was rolled out by the SRC during 2020, most activities did not take place due to COVID - 19. 
 

7.4.8. SRC ACTIVITY PLAN (COLLEGE) 

ACTIVITY DATE 

Elections of the SRC 13 October 2020 

Election of Executive Committee 15 October 2020 

SRC Induction/Training in Governance and Leadership Development & 
Team building session 

26 – 27 October 2020 

SRC Executive meeting 11 November 2020 

College Academic day Did not take place 

Roadshow to all sites Did not take place 

College Sports day (Game of Thrones Tournament) Did not take place 

 
7.4.9 CONCLUSION 

The Student Representative Council supports the College in its vision, as embodied in strategic documents, and in its journey of improved service delivery to the 
students of the College. 
 

7.4.10 APPRECIATION 
 

The SRC expresses its sincere appreciation to the Council, Accounting Officer, Management, Student Support Officials, Lecturers and Support Staff and all 
students of the College for their support to the SRC during the year under review. 
 
KEKANA S 
ACTING STUDENT SUPPORT MANAGER 

 



49 
 

PART C: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
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8 REPORT BY PRINCIPAL ON MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION  

 

The ORBIT College Strategic Plan took into account the following priority areas to ensure more effective teaching and learning and improvement of student 

achievement and success.  The strategic priority focus areas were: 

 

1. Growth and expansion of access and articulation opportunities for the youth; 

2. Improvement of academic quality and success, i.e. improving certification, throughput and retention rates; 

3. Establishing partnerships and linkages with industry, sector education and training authorities (SETAs) and/or other professional bodies and/or institutions of 

Higher Education for articulation into the labour market and/or further and higher learning opportunities; 

4. Support system efficiency and functionality;  

5. Sound institutional governance, management and leadership;  

6. Monitoring and evaluation and reporting of college performance; and  

7. Growth and expansion of artisan development opportunities. 

 

This report on management and administration serves to provide an overview of the extent in which College Management managed to address the strategic priority 

focus areas listed above.  This is done by highlighting compliance with as well as improvement of all strategic management and administrative processes, procedures, 

systems and activities during 2020. 

 

Significant progress was made in respect of reviewing and implementing changes to business operations, not only to ensure compliance with the requirements of 

government but also to support and enhance the delivery of our services.  Improvements to connectivity, infrastructure, risk management and internal control, curriculum 

support, occupational health and safety, staff development and student support services were all planned and introduced with a considered approach to achieve 

maximum impact.   
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9. COLLEGE PERFORMANCE AND ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT 
 

ORBIT TVET College mainly serves the Madibeng, Moses Kotane and Rustenburg communities. By being actively involved in communities, and by making sure that 

the College is included in relevant structures and plans, ORBIT College becomes a significant role player in growing the economy of the North West Province. 

 

As part of our strategy to reach out to these communities the College engages with local municipalities and enter into MoUs with them.  In addition, partnerships are 

forged with local business and industry, business forums and engagement with tribal authorities takes place on a continuous basis. 

 

Partnerships such as the above-mentioned enable ORBIT College to respond meaningfully to the requirements of the economy, assist in addressing rural development 

challenges and contribute to the development of an informed and educated citizenry.  Empowerment of out-of-school youth and alleviating poverty by skilling the youth 

and advancing their employability levels, are strategic goals that ORBIT TVET College strive to achieve on an annual basis.  Hence the Programme Qualification Mix 

that is offed comprises: 

 

 National Certificate Vocational NC(V) programmes 

 Report 191 (NATED) programmes (Engineering Studies, Business Studies and General Studies) 

 Learnerships and skills programmes – The College has programme approval from various SETAs to offer occupational/skills programmes which comply with 

industry standards 

 

9.1 Artisan Development Programmes 

 

ORBIT College is the beneficiary of the Centre of Specialisation (CoS) Project funded by DHET and NSF to train prospective artisans in Electrical and Diesel Mechanic 

Trades.  The Centres are located at Brits and Mankwe Campuses respectively.  Although the Centres were launched in February 2018, the projects officially 

commenced in 2020.The Centre of Specilisation enrolled 30 Electrician apprentices and 6o Diesel Mechanic apprentices. 

 

The College also signed MoUs/SLAs with  
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 the AECI group of companies for training of artisans in Welding Works 

 ISFAP to train prospective artisans in Electrical Work and Boilermaking 

 LGSETA for learner internship 

 INSETA for learners internship 

 Department of Rural Development for training of learners in Nail and Beauty Technology 

 MTN Mobile Telephone Networks for Entrepreneurial Support to the Centre of Entrepreneurship and Rapid Incubation 

 EWSETA financial support for the Centre of Specilisation – 15 Electrical Apprentices 

 EWSETA support for the establishment of the SETA office  

 National African Federation for the building Industry-(NAFBI) placement of apprentices 

 

In addition to offering training that is responsive to the needs of business and industry, the college also has a responsibil ity to support students by means of a 

comprehensive exit strategy.  Such a strategy includes vastly expanded access to workplace-based experiential learning and strong links between colleges, employers 

and employer organisations. 

 

To complement the College Graduate Support Programme, the Centre of Entrepreneurship support students who would like to establish their own businesses and 

provides support to local Small Medium Macro Enterprises (SMMEs). 

 

Students face many obstacles when entering the job market. In some fields supply outstrips demand, which has the effect of graduates ending up in jobs they did not 

train for. In other cases, graduates lack the minimum of three to four years of work experience in their field of study, which is often a requirement for jobs advertised. 

Without support from their colleges, students generally struggle to break into the job market and frequently end up in employment that is unrelated to their training.   
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9.2 Responsive curriculum delivery  
 

The North West Province is one of the smaller provinces of South Africa but it still maintains strong social and economic links with the Gauteng Province.  The Province 

has a total population of roughly 3.6 million inhabitants of which only 1.4 million are economically active.   

 

The following five main economic sectors in the North West Province are experiencing significant and almost crippling demand for appropriately qualified human 

resources: 

 Agriculture 

 Mining 

 Manufacturing 

 Tourism  

 Infrastructure and construction. 

In order to remain relevant and responsive to the needs of our community, ORBIT TVET College continued to offer a diverse range of vocational and occupational 

programmes in 2020.  The Programmes Qualifications Mix (PQM) of the College included, amongst others, the following: 

 Business Studies programmes such as Office Administration, Finance and Economics, HR Management, Management Assistant, Business Management and 

Financial Management 

 Engineering related programmes such as Electrical and Mechanical Engineering, Engineering and Related Design (Fitting and Turning/Machining and Boiler-

Making/Automotive), Civil Construction and ICT 

 Art and Design Programmes in Jewellery Design and Manufacture 

 Popular Music Performance 

 Educare 

 Accredited occupational programmes that empower individuals for self-employment and enhance employability 

 All programmes offered at the respective campuses are registered on the National Qualifications Framework and are fully accredited and certified by the 

Department of Higher Education and Training, UMALUSI and the QCTO in the case of learnerships and skills programmes or an International Accreditation Body. 
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 All National Certificate (Vocational) Programmes are quality assured by UMALUSI (the ETQA for Education) 

 Report 191 (N1-N3) programmes are quality assured by UMALUSI and Report 191 (N4-N6) programmes are quality assured by QCTO 

 

The year 2020 came with its own challenges as the COVID 19 pandemic hit across all spheres of our communities.  The national lockdown that was imposed over an 

extended period compelled the TVET College Sector to adjust and align its academic strategy by making available a number of e-learning platforms to allow students 

access to the curriculum.  A number of e-learning strategies were developed which included, amongst others, videos featuring learning content being recorded for 

broadcasting on GauTV and YouTube, establishment of lecturer-student Whatsapp groups, sharing of academic material via the Student i-Enabler, the College website, 

Facebook and providing links to academic platforms via bulk SMSes.  In addition to this, a student academic portal, MyOrbit, was established to host all academic 

programmes offered across the College.  Although the academic content for the portal is still work in progress, this unique zero-rated platform will ultimately become 

the hub of academic e-learning practices at ORBIT College. 

 
  



55 
 

9.3 Provision of Student Support Services 
 

Our College mandate is clear. On the demand side, the College must deliver on the skills needed to drive our country’s economic growth and social development at an 

increasing rate, because available, quality skills will enhance both investment and service delivery. On the supply side, the system must serve a growing number of 

both young people and adults; it must provide different entry points into, and pathways through the learning system; it must provide quality learning wherever learning 

takes place – be it at a college or in the workplace; and, importantly, it must provide easy pathways across the different learning sites.  Fully functional Student Support 

Centres at each campus support this goal.  These centers are complete with academic support and social support officials, academic support labs, study areas, internet 

cafés, job portals, etc.  .  The fully functional Student Support Centres at all campuses and sound partnerships with Business and Industry such as the mining industry, 

automotive industry, business sectors and the construction industry assisted in developing and improving student pass and certification rates during a very difficult 

year. 

 

The Student Support Services provided to students in 2020 also focused on addressing students’ different socio-economic backgrounds.  The approval and 

implementation of a holistic Student Support Plan for the College assisted management to respond to the geographical challenges of each delivery site, and to deal 

with the different economic and sociological profiles of students.   Mankwe Campus is the only campus with student residences and substantive amounts are annually 

allocated for the maintenance, refurbishment, etc. of these residences so that students live in conducive conditions 

 

Although the implementation of physical school visits and attendance of career expos were seriously hampered by the national lockdown, the College marketing strategy 

was adjusted to include a number of innovative marketing initiatives to continue reaching out to our communities.  The hosting of a first-ever virtual Open Day proved 

to be a tremendous success as stakeholders from government, business, industry and educational sectors joined and shared in this unique experience.  Other creative 

marketing strategies that were implemented included participation in digital career expos, expansion of online communication with all stakeholders and distribution of 

care packages to business and industry partners.  All these strategies were successfully implemented with the aim of: 

 Increasing access. 

 Informing the community of the services rendered by the college.  

 Establishing links with local, provincial, national and international entities to the benefit of our learners. 
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9.4 Stakeholder Framework 

ORBIT TVET College understands its stakeholder base and seeks to work with everyone who has interest in creating a vibrant College system. The following 

stakeholders were key to the delivery of the College vision and mission in terms of partnerships in 2020. 

 

PARTNERSHIPS 

ORBIT TVET College has signed Memorandums of Understanding (MoUs) with the following Business, Industry, Government, SETAs and 
Community partners: 

PARTNER PURPOSE OF PARTNERSHIP 

Business and Industry  
Tharisa Mining 
Ford SA  
Seda Platinum Incubator  
Impala Platinum Mines  
Laundrie Engineering and Mining  
Sun City  
Samsung  
ABSA Bank  
AECI  
Glencore Mining  
Electro Diesel  

 
Artisan Development Training/Centre of Specialisation 
Placement and training of students / Workshop support 
Incubator Business Support  
Training of lecturers / Placement of students  
Placement and training of students  
Placement of students  
Placement and training of students  
Placement and training of students  
Artisan Development Training / Funding for training  
Artisan Development Training  
Artisan Development Training  

Universities/Universities of Technology/TVET Colleges 
University of South Africa (UNISA) 
Tshwane University of Technology  

 
Music Examinations / Increased Access of TVET College Students to HE  
Skills Development  

Government Departments 
Department of Rural Development  
Department of Economic Development  
Department of Small Business Development  
Department of Education NW  
NSF 
Department of Health NW 

 
Automotive Repairs & Nail Technology 
SMME Development / Centre for Entrepreneurship  
Centre for Entrepreneurship and Rapid Incubator  
ECD Training  
Learnerships and Rural Development Programmes 
Artisan Development Training  

Local Communities, NGOs and municipalities 
Rustenburg Local Municipality  
Bojanala Platinum District Municipality  
Kgetleng Local Municipality  

 
Use of facilities and student placement/Training of employees/Artisan Development  
Placement of Students  
Placement of Students  
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Office of the Sherriff of the Magistrate Court 
Job Shimankana Hospital 
Brits Hospital 

Placement of Students 
Placement of Students 
Placement of Students 

Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs) 
Finance and Accounting SETA (FASSET)  
Services SETA  
ETDP SETA  
MQA  
merSETA  
INSETA 
CETA 
HWSETA 

 
Brand Ambassadorship 
Internship Programme  
Internship Programme  
Jewellery Design and Manufacture  
Artisan Development Programme 
Graduate Development 
Internship/Graduate Development 
Centre of Specialisation 

 
9.5 Human Resource Management 

 
Staff is one of our most valuable assets.   In the interest of staff safety, health, health wellness and to meet set targets employees were assisted to compile personal 

development plans to determine training needs and support needed.  In addition to this, various forms of training interventions pertaining to COVID19 protocols, usage 

of virtual platforms for meetings, and work remote strategies were organised to assist staff to improve their qualifications and skills in order to comply the regulations 

and realise the reality of the 4IR. The experience, competencies and skills of staff are fully utilised and skills obtained by the WIL were fully employed to the benefit of 

the College. 

 

The approved staff establishment for ORBIT COLLEGE allowed for total number 480 posts to be filled in 2020. By December 2020, 418 posts were filled and 62 

posts were still vacant across the four sites: 

VACANT POSTS AS AT DECEMBER 2020 

Category BRITS MANKWE RUSTENBURG CENTRAL OFFICE 
ORBIT  

VACANT POSTS 

Lecturing staff 8 10 18 0 36 

Office based staff 0 0 0 0 0 

Support staff 0 11 6 9 26 

TOTAL 8 21 24 9 62 
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Critical posts that were still vacant at December 2020 included a number of Management positions at Central Office: 
 

CRITICAL POST SITE 

None Rustenburg Campus 

Student Support Manager Central Office 

Artisan Development Manager 

Management Accounts Manager  

Extra – Curricular Co ordinator 

Facility Manager Mankwe Campus 

None Brits Campus 

 

The vacancy of the above-mentioned positions impacts negatively on smooth operations and monitoring of activities. Some responsibilities are delegated to 
Managers who are expected to perform their roles and carry out other duties on acting capacity. 
 
Critical posts in which people were acting at December 2020: 
 

Critical Post with acting 
person 

Acting Site 

Student Support Manager Mr MS Kekana was appointed as the acting Student Support Manager upon the resignation of Ms 
Modiba in 2020. 

Central Office 

Mankwe Campus Manager Ms W Molapi was appointed as acting Campus Manager Mankwe Campus on 1 June 2019 due to 
Mr ZM Nkomo being co-opted to act as Regional Director at the Regional DHET office 

Mankwe Campus 

 

NUMBER OF LECTURING AND SUPPORT STAFF - 2020 

Category BRITS MANKWE RUSTENBURG CENTRAL OFFICE ORBIT STAFF 2020 

Management Staff 0 0 0 4 4 

Lecturing Staff 70 80 86 0 236 

Office based 2 1 3 2 8 

Support Staff 32 49 32 57 170 

TOTAL 104 130 121 63 418 
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High-level organisational organogram 
 

  

College Principal

DF MOKOENA

Deputy Principal: Academic 
Programmes and Student Support 

Services

TJ MOSITO

Business Development and 
Innovation Manager

PM MATLOU

Student Support Services Manager

R MODIBA (MS)

Vocational Programmes Manager

P Nkau

Artisan Development Manager

VACANT

Deputy Principal Finances

T MOKHETHI

Finance Manager

M VISSER (MS)

Management Accounts Manager

VACANT

Supply Chain Manager

MO SHOKO (MS)

Deputy Principal:  Corporate 
Services

MS MATJIANE

Data and Information Manager

JCH VILJOEN (DR)

HR Manager

GM MAFOJANE

IT Manager

PS MAKHOYE

Corporate Communications 
Manager

M VILJOEN (MS)

Internal Auditor and Assurance 
Manager

MM TSABANGWE

Campus Managers

W MOLAPI (MANKWE)(ACTING)

MS B KGABOESELE (RUSTENBURG)

TM TLHOPILE (MS) (BRITS)



60 
 

9.6 Finances and funding 

The Deputy Principal Finance together with the Finance Manager managed the finances of the College soundly by adhering to general accounting principles, 

consolidating all budgets of campuses/units and by recording and keeping proper records of income and expenditure. Alternative funding secured through projects by 

the Business Development and Innovation Unit and value-added relations with potential investors, paying clients, donors, sponsors or partners in the private and public 

sectors were also managed well.  Managing the College during national lockdown and amid the COVID-19 pandemic, called for an adjustment of the College budget 

to provide for the purchasing of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for staff and students. 

 

9.7 Conducting examinations and assessment 

The Deputy Principal Academic, Campus Managers and Campus Academic Programme Co-ordinators were responsible for managing and administering campus 

examinations and assessments in compliance with the applicable legislation and regulations.  By making sure that proper systems, strategies and structures were in 

place, the Academic Unit promoted the education and training of students effectively and efficiently and in accordance with applicable policies amid the challenges that 

were experienced due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

9.8 Governance, management and leadership 

Proper governance, management and leadership at College and campus level are preconditions for optimal institutional functionality. The development of common 

standards of governance, management and leadership provided the College with a common framework of monitoring and evaluating the level of governance in the 

college, albeit through adapted means of virtual meetings. 

 

The College Council of ORBIT College is responsible for the overall governance of the Institution with the focus on the optimal utilisation of College resources through 

an effective and appropriate organisational structure, policies and systems.  Full compliance to Governance Policies was effected by Council and Council Sub-committee 

meetings that took place regularly and as per required schedule. 

 

 The Academic Board was fully functional and met governance policy requirements to oversee the development and implementation of the Teaching and Learning Plan 

by meeting quarterly as per policy requirements. 

 



61 
 

The Management Board met regularly with the aim to establish and maintain an organisational culture and climate that resulted in effective teaching and learning as 

evident in the academic performance of students.  Regular special meetings were held during national lockdown level five and level four to plan, strategise and monitor 

implementation of all resolutions taken to ensure the safety of staff and students, whilst attempting to save the academic year. 

 

9.9 Risk Management 

Risk identification and evaluation sessions were conducted with all ORBIT College Management in 2020. The process involved the confirmation of objectives, 

identification of events, the setting of the risk scoring matrix and identification and evaluation of new risks, the identification and evaluation of existing controls and 

identification of future actions and timeframes to mitigate the identified risks.  The process was informed by the DHET Risk Management Policy.   

 

The college has in place an approved risk management policy and risk management strategy. In the risk management policy, the college stance of an enterprise-wide 

risk management approach is captured. The risk management process, stakeholders and their related roles and responsibilities appear on the risk management strategy.  

Risk management implementation is embedded in the risk management strategy.  Progress registered with the implementation of the strategy is reported at two levels, 

i.e. College management and at the risk management committee.  The college conducts strategic risk assessments on an annual basis and has adopted a process for 

the identification and management of emerging risks in the approved Risk Management Strategy.  

 

The college has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) in place comprising management board members. The independent chairperson of the RMC is vacant.  

 

The Audit and Risk Committee also provides an independent and objective view of the college risk management effectiveness as part of risk management oversight 

quarterly.  The audit and risk committee has recommended the approval of the strategic risk register to the council.  Though the college has registered progress in the 

mitigation of risks as captured in both the strategic risk registers, there are deficiencies. Consequently, measures have been designed and put into place in the 2020 

financial year to strengthen both the monitoring and reporting on risk treatment plans. 

 

Senior Management prioritised nine risks for quarterly reporting to the Audit & Risk Committee.  These risks included:  

 Health and Safety 
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 Inventory management 

 ICT governance 

 College service level agreement conclusion 

 Administration of accounts receivables and accounts payable 

 Centre For Entrepreneurship Operating procedures  

 Student strikes 

 Late commencement of classes  

 Effective management of projects  

 

The internal audit and assurance unit monitored the implementation of existing controls, future actions and reported quarterly to update the college risk register. 

 

9.10 Occupational Health and Safety 

Health and Safety in the workplace is regulated by the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Act, No. 85 of 1993. In terms of the Act, the Accounting Officer (Principal) 

is charged with the responsibility of ensuring that the workplace that is safe and without risk to the health of employees.  

 

The employer has a duty in terms of this Act to report all Injury on Duty cases to the compensation commissioner. IOD cases for the year 2020 were reported to the 

compensation commissioner and claim numbers were given to the affected employees for claim tracking purposes.  Periodic servicing of fire equipment, generators, 

first aid kits and deep cleaning of offices etc. was conducted at the respective college sites. 

 

9.11 Quality Management System 

The College is certified against the ISO 9001:2015 by the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS). The new certificate was issued to the College in April 2018. The 

college uses the SABS logo on some of its material according to its agreement. The logo is displayed on the college website, college memos and letterhead to name 

a few. The college internally implements the management system and also conducts audits on its system. The Quality Management System policy is displayed on the 

College website and is also displayed across all college sites as awareness to both staff and customers/contractors. 
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A re-certification audit against the requirements of ISO 9001:2015 was performed from 12 to 14 October 2020.  A report, which details the findings of the audit together 

with the conclusion was issued. Six non-conformance findings were issued to the College.  These were subsequently addressed and closed. 

 

The sites that were audited included Mankwe Campus, Rustenburg Campus and Central Office. 

 

The audit conclusion from the SABS report was as follows: 

 

Effectiveness of the management system over the three year certification cycle 

 

The performance of the College QMS was effective in achieving objectives over the three year cycle 

 

Appropriateness of the certification scope and fulfilment of audit objectives 

 

The scope of certification was still appropriate. The objective of the audit was a re-certification audit which was achieved accordingly. 

 
Recommendation/Non-recommendation statement 
 

Full Compliance  Open with corrective actions x Suspension 
Recommendation 

 

 
9.12 Internal Audit  

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organization's operations. It helps an organization 

to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance 

processes.  
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The key objective of the internal audit is to provide a value added risk-based internal audit service to the college. 

 

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 three assurance and advisory reports were issued to the college. Work performed was based on a risk-based internal 

audit plan and included audits of: supply chain management; annual financial statements reviews; inventory management; bursary administration and audit action plans 

(both internal and external). Based on the audit work performed internal control, risk management and governance processes are generally adequate and effective and 

recommendations for further improvement have been made to the college. This will occur through timely and adequate implementation of agreed-upon audit action 

plans. 

 

9.13 Conclusion 

As the Accounting Officer/Principal of ORBIT TVET College I committed myself and the resources of the college to achieving the targets outlined in the College Strategic 

and Operational Plans. This Annual Report is a reflection of the extent to which the College managed to achieve these targets in spite of the immense challenges that 

the College were faced with during the extended COVID 19 lockdown period.  Although a number of originally set targets were met and exceeded, a number of targets 

had to be adjusted and modified due to the impact that the COVID 19 pandemic had on the College planned enrolments, finances and daily operations.  

 

As a College, we are justifiably proud of the initiatives and achievements accomplished over the past year, especially in the light of the unexpected, yet irrevocable 

changes that were necessitated by the lockdown.  We realise that the survival of the College is ultimately rooted in our ability to adapt and change amid our 

circumstances.  As an education and training institution of choice, we have no option but to remain relevant and accessible, offering services to meet our clients’ unique 

needs within the landscape for the TVET College Sector. 

 

In the instances where the College can still improve, and I am of the opinion that the Management and Council of ORBIT College will remain committed to keep 

improving, growing and sustaining the College, steering it to even greater heights, going forward. 

 

The fundamental principle and vision of ORBIT TVET College is that it is a global institution of excellence, surpassing community needs. This is a principle that commits 

everyone involved with the College to tirelessly strive to make sure that our students enjoy the same quality learning environment, opportunities and stimulation, 

regardless of the changes we were forced to make amid the COVID 19 pandemic. 
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We will continue to embrace our core values of Transformation, Accountability, Respect and Teamwork.  For us, meeting and exceeding the expectations of the 

communities we serve is not a process but rather an ethos.   

 

 

____________ 

MOKOENA DF 

ACCOUNTING OFFICER/PRINCIPAL 
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10. PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

 
The graphical information displayed in this section of the Annual Report aims at providing a visual presentation of the performance of ORBIT TVET College during 2020 

in terms of: 

 

Enrolment targets  

A growth analysis has been done, based on comparative headcounts covering 2016 – 2020.  This graph provides an indication of the growth rate per campus over a 

period of four years. 

A breakdown of the total headcount (HS) for Vocational/Ministerial funded programmes is also provided per campus.  All headcounts indicated in this section exclude 

exemptions, cancellations and exam-only enrolments. 

 

Headcount is based on an average calculation of 1 HC = 7subject enrolments for NCV, 1 HC = 4 subject enrolments for Report 191 programmes and 1 HC = 1 student 

for occupational programmes. 

 

Academic Compliance  

The graphs presented in this section focus on certification rates, pass rates and retention rates for NCV and Report 191 (Semester and Trimester) programmes 

respectively.  Certification rates were calculated based on the number of students who enrolled for a full qualification. Pass rates were calculated based on subject 

enrolments. 

  

Graduation Compliance  

A comparative analysis of graduation statistics was done for the period 2019-2020 for exit level qualifications only, i.e. NCV Level 4 and National N Diploma.  The 

compliance of NCV Level 4 graduates with the admission requirements of Higher Education Institutions such as Universities and Universities of Technology is also 

presented as this provides an indication of articulation of NCV graduates into Higher Education as one of the exit level options. 
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10.1 STUDENT ENROLMENTS       

10.1.1 Growth Analysis (Comparative Headcount: 2016-2020) 

CAMPUS / YEAR 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 % Growth / Campus 

BRITS 3246 3348 3239.21 2352 2352 0% 

MANKWE 3223 4741 3952.96 3007 3007 0% 

RUSTENBURG 4369 4931 4908.75 3113 3113 0% 

ORBIT College Totals 10838 13020 12101 8472 8472 0 

% College Growth / Year -3% 17% -8% -43% 0% 0% 
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10.1.2 Subject Headcount (HC) Vocational & Occupational Programmes (Unduplicated) – 2020 
 

(Subject) HC NC(V) Programmes – 2020   (Subject) HC Report 191 Programmes - 2020 

Campus (Subject) HC  Campus Programme (Subject) HC 

Brits 1077  

Brits 

Engineering Studies 742 

Mankwe 1223  Business Studies 474 

Rustenburg 1215  Sub-Total 1216 

College NC(V) Total 
NC(V) % Growth / Year 

3515 
  

 

Mankwe 

Engineering Studies 961 

 Business Studies 717 

   Sub-Total 1678 

HC (PLP) per Campus - 2020  

Rustenburg 

Engineering Studies 1118 

Campus Headcount   Business Studies 639 

Brits    Sub-Total 1757 

Mankwe 52  College Report 191 Total 
Report 191 % Growth / Year 

4651 
  Rustenburg 50  

College PLP Total 102    
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HC (Occupational & CoS) per Campus - 2020   Total HC per Campus - 2020 

Campus Headcount    Campus Headcount  

Brits 59   Brits 2352 

Mankwe 54   Mankwe 3007 

Rustenburg 91    Rustenburg 3113 

College Occupational Programmes 
Total 

204    College Total 8472 

 

 
Figure 10.1.2.1 
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TOTAL COLLEGE HEADCOUNT - 2020 

Programme  Headcount  

NC(V) (Subject) Headcount 3515 

Report 191 (Subject) Headcount 4651 

Headcount (PLP) 102 

HC (Occupational & CoS) 204 

Total College Headcount  8472 

 

 

Figure 10.1.2.2 
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10.2 STUDENT ACADEMIC PERFORMANCE 

10.2.1  NCV: CERTIFICATION RATE: 2017 - 2020 (Based on number written vs number passed) 
 

  

2017 2018 2019 2020 
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Level 2 1404 687 611 88.94 48.93 1147 668 549 82.19 58.24 1344 662 542 81.87 49.26 1300 578 469 81.14 44.46 

Level 3 422 364 331 90.93 86.26 565 491 374 76.17 86.90 580 461 373 80.91 79.48 553 413 318 77.00 74.68 

Level 4 325 314 229 72.93 96.62 317 277 199 71.84 87.38 397 343 233 67.93 86.40 398 330 222 67.27 82.91 
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10.2.2 NCV: PASS RATE: 2017 - 2020 (based on subject enrolments) 

 

  

2017 2018 2019 2020 

SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS 
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Level 2 11363 7451 6720 90.19 65.57 9178 6459 5668 87.75 70.37 10563 6758 6089 90.10 63.98 10266 6122 5391 88.06 59.63 

Level 3 5167 4165 3875 93.04 80.61 5910 5082 4527 89.08 85.99 6196 5116 4568 89.29 82.57 6142 4708 4147 88.08 76.65 

Level 4 3893 3419 2804 82.01 87.82 3632 3136 2640 84.18 86.34 4978 4301 3551 82.56 86.40 4923 4035 3249 80.52 81.96 
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10.2.3 NCV: RETENTION RATE: 2017 - 2020 (based on subject enrolments) 
 

 

Figure 10.2.3 
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10.2.4  REPORT 191: BUSINESS &GENERAL STUDIES CERTIFICATION RATE: 2019 vs 2020 (Based on number written vs number 
passed) 

 

Level  

2019 2020 

CERTIFICATION RATE CERTIFICATION RATE 

Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N4 921 631 474 75.12 68.51 512 284 208 73.24 55.47 

N5 537 400 284 71.00 74.49 243 172 123 71.51 70.78 

N6 409 344 197 57.27 84.11 211 185 101 54.59 87.68 
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10.2.5 REPORT 191: BUSINESS & GENERAL STUDIES PASS RATE: 2019 vs 2020 
 

  

2019 2020 

SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS 

Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N4 4411 3481 2929 84.14 78.92 2305 1526 1284 84.14 66.20 

N5 3960 3215 2608 81.12 81.19 1782 1330 1079 81.13 74.64 

N6 3684 3120 2306 73.91 84.69 1853 1558 1157 74.26 84.08 
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10.2.6 REPORT 191: BUSINESS & GENERAL STUDIES RETENTION RATE: 2019 vs 2020 
 

 
Figure 10.2.6 
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10.2.7 REPORT 191: ENGINEERING STUDIES CERTIFICATION RATE: 2019 vs 2020 (Based on the number written vs number passed) 
 

  

2019 2020 

CERTIFICATION RATE CERTIFICATION RATE 

Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N1 921 664 514 77.41 72.10 351 218 167 76.61 62.11 

N2 879 513 222 43.27 58.36 447 218 96 44.04 48.77 

N3 389 243 112 46.09 62.47 214 114 58 50.88 53.27 

N4 300 215 73 33.95 71.67 131 76 44 57.89 58.02 

N5 167 113 42 37.17 67.66 105 58 16 27.59 55.24 

N6 79 47 7 14.89 59.49 60 23 5 21.74 38.33 
 

 

 
Figure 10.2.7 
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10.2.8  REPORT 191: ENGINEERING STUDIES PASS RATE: 2019 vs 2020 
 

  

2019 2020 

SUBJECT ENROLMENTS SUBJECT ENROLMENTS 

Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention Enrolled Written Passed % Pass Retention 

N1 4189 3561 3017 84.72 85.01 1678 1325 1045 78.87 78.96 

N2 6220 4791 2708 56.52 77.03 3079 2069 1162 56.16 67.20 

N3 3885 3027 1675 55.34 77.92 2071 1375 796 57.89 66.39 

N4 3067 2428 1164 47.94 79.17 1399 948 507 53.48 67.76 

N5 1732 1315 706 53.69 75.92 1024 634 246 38.80 61.91 

N6 1197 873 389 44.56 72.93 713 415 145 34.94 58.20 
 

 

 

   Figure 10.2.8 
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10.2.9 REPORT 191: ENGINEERING STUDIES RETENTION RATE: 2019 vs 2020 (based on subject enrolments) 
 

 

Figure 10.2.9 
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10.3. COMPLIANT GRADUATES  

10.3.1. NC(V) COMPLIANT GRADUATES 2019 vs 2020 

NC(V) LEVEL 4 GRADUATES (passing all 21 subjects) 
2019 - 2020 

2019 - 2020 Student compliance to HE institutional admission requirements 

Programme 2019 
Graduates  

2020 
Graduates  

2019 
Higher 

Certificate  

2020  
Higher 

Certificate  

2019  
National N 
Diploma 

2020 
National N 
Diploma 

2019  
Bachelor's Degree  

2020  
Bachelor's Degree  

Requires an NC(V) Level 4 
certificate to have been issued, 

passing all 21 subjects 

Requires an NC(V) Level 4 certificate 
having been issued with 50% in three 

fundamental subjects and 60% in 
three compulsory vocational subjects 

Requires an NC(V) Level 4 certificate 
having been issued with 60% in three 
fundamental subjects and 70% in four 

vocational subjects 

Civil Engineering 
Construction 

2 1 2 1 0 0 0 0 

Electrical Infrastructure 
Construction 

29 42 24 38 5 4 0 0 

Engineering & Related 
Design 

44 38 38 26 5 12 1 0 

Finance, Economics & 
Accounting  

19 36 16 28 3 7 0 1 

Hospitality 16 21 14 21 1 0 1 0 

ICT & Computer Science 12 7 12 6 0 1 0 0 

Management 14 24 11 21 2 3 1 0 

Office Administration 102 97 77 82 19 13 6 2 

Tourism 15 12 11 9 2 3 2 0 

Transport & Logistics 51 46 40 33 7 12 4 1 

TOTAL COMPLIANT 
GRADUATES 

304 324 245 265 44 55 15 4 

TOTAL 324 

Figure 10.3.1 
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Figure 10.3.1.1 
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Figure 10.3.1.2 
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10.3.2 REPORT 191 NATIONAL N-DIPLOMA COMPLIANT GRADUATES 2019 vs 2020 

Report 191 (NATED) NATIONAL N DIPLOMA GRADUATES 2019 - 2020 

Programme 2019 Graduates  2020 Graduates  

Business Management 6 4 

Educare 24 5 

Engineering Studies 11 6 

Financial Management 23 22 

Hospitality & Catering Services 3 0 

Human Resource Management 44 21 

Management Assistant 29 17 

TOTAL COMPLIANT GRADUATES 140 75 

 Figure 3.2.1 
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10.4 COLLEGE ANNUAL PERFORMANCE ACHIEVEMENTS IN TERMS OF TVET SYSTEM TARGETS 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR 
2020 

TARGET 

2020 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

TARGET 

DEVIATION 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

1. Expanded access to 

TVET College 

opportunities 

1.1  

Students enrolled 

and managed as per 

enrolment plan 

Number of students enrolled in 

different programme types: 

11929 8550 -3379 

There were no intakes for 

Trimester 3 Engineering 

Studies and Semester 2 

Business Studies.  This 

resulted in an under-

enrolment of students 

*NCV 

3280 3514 +234 

A higher demand in certain NCV 

programmes resulted in a slight 

overenrolment. 

*Report 191 

8005 4651 -3354 

Enrolments in 2020 were limited 

to only two intakes due to the 

academic programme being 

disrupted by the COVID 19 

pandemic:   

 NCV, Trimester 1 and 

Semester 1 in January 

 Trimester 2 in August 

 

Failure to take in students for 

Trimester 3 and Semester 2 

resulted in the low number of 

enrolments for Report 191 

programmes. 

*PLP 

100 102 +2 

A slight over-enrolment of PLP 

students was recorded at 

Mankwe and Rustenburg 

Campuses although not all of 

them managed to complete the 

programme successfully 

*Occupational qualifications 

393 204 -189 

The data was taken from Report 

60 of TVET MIS 

The only occupational 

pprogramme enrolments that 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR 
2020 

TARGET 

2020 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

TARGET 

DEVIATION 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

were captured on the BMS 

included ECD Level 5, Beauty 

Therapy and Nail Technology 

and Hairdressing 

*Trades (CoS) 

118 79 -39 

A new group of students were 

supposed to be taken in and 

captured in the second term, but 

this did not materialize due to 

the first group not having 

completed their training during 

the first term. 

*Higher Certificates 

(L5 & 6 Qualifications) 33 0 -33 

No Level 5 and Level 6 full-time 

qualifications were offered by the 

College 

1.2  

College student 

accommodation 

optimally utilised 

Occupation rate (%) per enrolment 

cycle 
95% 95% 0% 

 

       

2. Improved success 

and efficiency of 

TVET College 

systems 

2.1  

Apprentices in trade 

programmes qualify 

and pass trade test 

Number of artisans exiting CoS or 

college 

140 0 -140 

COVID-19 pandemic and 

consequent national lockdown 

regulations resulted in training 

hours and schedules not being 

met for students to qualify as 

artisans 

2.2 

Students complete 

qualifications and 

programmes and 

exit the college 

Number of students at exit levels 

exiting college programmes  
1889 550 -1339 

 

*Number of students exiting NCV L4  

720 352 -368 

The final result was based on 

the calculated ICASS marks for 

the 2020 November examination 

Many students did not return to 

class or write examinations due 

to the COVID-19 pandemic  
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR 
2020 

TARGET 

2020 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

TARGET 

DEVIATION 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

*Number of students exiting N6  

584 198 -386 

The final result for T1 

Engineering Studies was based 

on final examinations.   

The final result for T2 

Engineering Studies was based 

on calculated ICASS marks. 

Not all T1 and T2 students 

returned for classes and 

examinations due to the COVID-

19 pandemic. 

Fewer students returned for S1 

Business Studies to complete 

their studies and to write 

examinations. 

2.3  

NCV students 

complete 

qualification within 3 

years 

Throughput rate (%) of NCV L4 

student cohort  

52% 49% -3% 

Not all students completed all 

the required assessments due to 

the COVID-19 pandemic.  This 

resulted in them not obtaining 

examination admission 

2.4  

PLP students 

retained  

Retention rate (%) in PLP 

85% 84% -1% 

A number of enrolled PLP 

students opted not to return to 

campus to complete their 

programme due to fear of 

COVID-19 

2.5  

PLP students’ 

progress into initial 

programmes of 

choice 

Progression rate (%) of PLP students 

80% 71% -9% 

The number of required 

assessments had to be adjusted 

in response to the COVID-19 

pandemic and consequent 

national lockdown.  

       

3. Improved quality of 

TVET College 

provision 

3.1  

College council 

constituted and 

compliant with 

standards 

% compliance with governance 

standards 

100% 100% 0% 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR 
2020 

TARGET 

2020 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

TARGET 

DEVIATION 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

3.2  

Examinations 

conducted with 

minimum 

irregularities 

reported 

% compliance with examinations 

standards and policy  

100% 98% -2% 

Brits Campus: 

The Campus Certificate of 

Competence (CoC) was not in 

place during Quarter 1 

Mankwe Campus: 

No back-up power generator 

was available in case of 

electricity cuts or load-shedding 

Rustenburg Campus: 

Dividers in computer labs were 

not installed yet 

The Campus could not provide a 

Health and Safety Certificate 

during Quarter 4. 

3.3  

More students meet 

the requirements for 

writing examinations 

% of registered students (based on 

subject enrolment) qualifying for 

examinations 

95% 62% -33% 

Many students did not return to 

class after the College was re-

opened at level 3 to level 1.  

Some students did not write all 

required assessments, resulting 

in them not obtaining 

examination admission. 

3.4  

TVET College 

lecturers placed in 

industry for specified 

periods to gain 

relevant experience  

% of TVET College lecturers placed 

in industry 

17% 0% -17% 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic 

and consequent national 

lockdown regulations no 

lecturers could be placed with 

industries as planned 

3.5  

Partnerships signed 

for improving 

teaching and 

learning and 

relevance of 

programmes 

Number of partnership agreements 

(locally and internationally) for 

purposes of exchanging and/or 

placing college students and /or 

lecturers 
15 3 -12 

Placement of students with 

business and industry was 

compromised due to the COVID-

19 pandemic.  Student 

placement partnerships that 

were recorded, included NAFBI, 

Gauteng Department of Health 

and EW SETA. 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE OUTPUT OUTPUT INDICATOR 
2020 

TARGET 

2020 ACTUAL 

ACHIEVEMENT 

TARGET 

DEVIATION 

REASON FOR DEVIATION 

       

4. Improved 

responsiveness of 

TVET colleges to the 

world of work 

4.1.  

More students 

enrolled in identified 

programme offerings 

relating to OIHD and 

priority skills 

Number of students enrolled in 

programmes relating to OIHD and 

priority skills  
166 204 +38 

Priority skills programmes for 

which student enrolments were 

recorded, included ECD Level 5, 

Beauty Therapy and Nail 

Technology and Hairdressing. 

4.2  

Entrepreneurship 

hubs established 

and supported 

Number of students engaged in 

entrepreneurship programmes and 

initiatives 200 153 -47 

The number of students 

engaged in entrepreneurship 

programmes were limited due to 

the COVID-19 pandemic and the 

consequent national lockdown 

4.3  

Students placed for 

WBPL at exit levels 

Number of students placed for 

WBPL at exit levels  
275 0 -275  

*Number of students placed for 

WBPL at NCV L4 
100 0 -100 

Work-based placement of exit 

level students did not materialize 

due to the COVID-19 pandemic 

and the consequent extended 

national lockdown.  Employers 

could not place students due to 

their own COVID -19 workplace 

regulations restricting access to 

premises. 

*Number of students placed for 

WBPL at N6 

175 0 -175 
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10.5 STRATEGY TO DEAL WITH UNDERPERFORMANCE 

 
Pass rates for the respective Vocational/Ministerial funded Programmes have been graphically presented in Section 10.2.  Although pass rates reflect a positive picture 
across most levels and programmes, it does not indemnify College Management from putting measures in place to maintain good performance. 
 
The Academic Unit has put in place a number measures, strategies and interventions to maintain good academic standards and to deal with underperformance of 
students.  These interventions are aimed at consistently improving academic performance of students in an effort to achieve annual performance targets as outlined in 
the strategic plan of the College. 
 
The following interventions/measures and strategies were put in place in 2020 to improve academic performance and to deal with underperformance that was associated 
with the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and consequent national lockdown on academic planning: 
 

 During lockdown when students were unable to access campuses for physical teaching and learning a comprehensive online learning strategy was 
developed and implemented across a number of different platforms to make the curriculum as accessible as possible to students 

 Online learning initiatives that were implemented included: 
- recording of videos on learning material and sharing of these on the GauTV channel, DHET website and You Tube with students 
- the establishment of Whatsapp subject groups by lecturers to share material and support students 
- sharing of learning material and content via the zero-rated College website and Student i-Enabler 
- sharing information with students via the College Facebook page 

 The College portal was also established as an e-learning platform, although content development is still work-in-progress 

 Comprehensive performance improvement, teaching and learning management plans and teaching and learning and examination monitoring plans were 
developed and communicated to allow for clarity of academic year goals and objectives. 

 Monitoring and support visits were intensified and used as a method to instil a culture of excellence. 

 The in-depth analysis of poor performing subjects per programme per level per campus was completed to identify root causes and to plan for improvement. 

 Planned follow-ups on monitoring were completed to ensure that all identified gaps were closed. 

 The effective use of the Peer Academic Leader (PAL) programme encouraged group study and peer-to-peer tutoring. 

 Best practices were identified through inter-campus performance improvement workshops and were applied and used as far as possible. 

 The Academic Systems Technologies Tutoring programme from Student Support was used to reinforce learning of classroom content 
 
The consistent implementation and monitoring of the above-mentioned strategies and interventions went a long way to finally reflect the positive academic picture as 
presented in Section 10.2. 
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Report of the auditor-general to the minister of Higher Education, Science and Innovation 
and the council on the Orbit Technical and Vocational Education and Training College 
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements 
 
Qualified opinion 
 
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Orbit Technical and Vocational Education and Training (TVET) College, set out on pages 99 to 

164, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in 

net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. 

 

2. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion section of this auditor’s report, the 

financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Orbit TVET College as at 31 December 2020, and its 

financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

(GRAP) and the requirements of the Continuing Education and Training Act 16 of 2006 (Ceta). 
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Basis for qualified opinion 

 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
 
3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the gross other debtors included in receivables from exchange transactions due 

to the poor status of the accounting records. I was also unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the impairment of student 

debtors and other debtors due to differences between the age analysis used to calculate impairment and the financial statements. I was unable 

to confirm these receivables from exchange transactions and impairment by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 

whether any adjustments were necessary to other debtors and allowance for impairment, stated at R26 599 364 and R136 762 884, 

respectively, in note 8 to the financial statements, and to the debt impairment, stated at R25 272 633 in note 28 to the financial statements. 

 

Prior period errors 
 
4. The college did not disclose all adjustments made to correct prior period as required by GRAP 3, Accounting policies, changes in accounting 

estimates and errors, as the nature, the amount of the correction for each financial statement item affected and the amount of the correction at 

the beginning of the earliest prior period were not disclosed for all adjustments made. I was unable to quantify the full extent of the misstatement 

as it was impracticable to do so. 

 

Context for the opinion 
 
5. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report. 

 

6. I am independent of the college in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for 

professional accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements that are relevant 

to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. 

 

7. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion. 
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Responsibilities of the council for the financial statements 
 
8. The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards of GRAP and 

the requirements of Ceta, and for such internal control as the council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

9. In preparing the financial statements, the council is responsible for assessing the college’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 

as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate governance structure 

either intends to liquidate college or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s report. 

 

Performance information reporting 
 
12. The college is not required to prepare a report on its performance against predetermined objectives, as it does not fall within the ambit of the 

Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 and such reporting is also not required in terms of Ceta. 
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Report on audit of compliance with legislation 
 
Introduction and scope 
 
13. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report 

material findings on the compliance of the college with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but 

not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

 

14. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows: 

 

Financial statements 
 
15. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with generally recognised accounting practice and supported 

by complete accounting records, as required by section 25(1)(b) and 25(3) of Ceta. Material misstatements of non-current assets, current 

assets, revenue, expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were corrected and the 

supporting records were provided subsequently, but the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records that could not be provided 

resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified audit opinion. 

 

Other information 
 
16. The council is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, which 

includes the chairperson’s report and the audit committee’s report. The other information does not include the financial statements and the 

auditor’s report. 

 

17. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an 

audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it. 
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18. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

19. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do receive and read this information, if I conclude that 

there is a material misstatement therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that the 

other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended 

report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary. 

 

Internal control deficiencies 
 
20. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective 

was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that 

resulted in the basis for qualified opinion and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report. 

 

21. The council did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility over financial reporting, compliance monitoring and related internal controls as 

material misstatements were identified in the financial statements submitted for auditing. 

 

22. Senior management did not adequately review the financial statements before submitting them for auditing. Processes to ensure adequate 

and effective record keeping, daily and monthly reconciliation of transactions, and maintenance of regular, accurate and complete financial 

records to avoid material misstatements in the financial statements were not implemented. 

 

23. Although the internal audit unit and the audit committee reviewed the financial statements prior to submission for auditing, this was not effective 

as material misstatements were identified during the audit. 

 
Rustenburg 
20 August 2021  
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 
 
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout my audit of 

the financial statements and on the college’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters. 

 

Financial statements 
 
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the auditor’s report, I also: 

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the college’s internal control 

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 

by the council 

 conclude on the appropriateness of the council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. 

I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Orbit TVET College’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 

required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if 

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available 

to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the college to cease to continue as a going 

concern 

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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Communication with those charged with governance 
 
3. I communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

4. I also provide the council with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate 

with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where applicable, actions taken 

to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
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ORBIT TVET COLLEGE  
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020  

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the council:  

Index  

Abbreviation/acronyms   Definition  

AGSA     Auditor General of South Africa  

ASB     Accounting Standards Board  

SA GAAP    South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

GRAP     Generally Recognised Accounting Practice  

VAT     Value Added Tax  

SARS     South African Revenue Services  

IAS     International Accounting Standards  

SRC     Student Representative  

IPSAS     International Public Sector Accounting Standards  

GEPF     Government Employee Pension Fund  

DHET     Department of Higher Education and Training  
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ORBIT TVET COLLEGE  
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020  

Responsibilities and Approval of Council  

The Council is required by the Continuing Education and Training Act No. 16 of 2006, to maintain adequate accounting records 
and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in 
this report. It is the responsibility of Council to ensure the financial statements of the College fairly presents the results of its 
operations, cash flows and state of affairs in conformity with GRAP at financial year end. The Auditor General was engaged to 
express an independent opinion on the financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records, related 
data and relevant parties.  

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and 
in the manner required by the Minister of Higher Education and Training.  

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.  

The accounting officers acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established 
by the college and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting 
officers to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of 
error or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 
controls are monitored throughout the college and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in 
ensuring the college’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of 
risk management in the college is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the college. 
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the college endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, 
controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.  

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of 
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual 
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.  

The accounting officer has reviewed the college’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 December 2021 and, in the light of th is 
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the college has or has access to adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future.  

The college is wholly dependent on the college for continued funding of operations. The annual financial statements are 
prepared on the basis that the college is a going concern and that the college has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate 
or curtail materially the scale of the college.  

Although the accounting officer are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the college, he is supported by the college's 
external auditors.  

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the municipality's annual financial 
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the college's external auditors and their report is 
presented on page 91 - 97.  

The annual financial statements set out on page 105, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by 
the on 31 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:  

  

Chairperson of Council: ORBIT TVET College  
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